
 
 
 

 
 

GwE Gogledd Cymru 
 

 

  
 

Meeting 
 

GWE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
 

 

 
Date and Time 

 
10.30 am, WEDNESDAY, 15TH FEBRUARY, 2023 

 

 
 

 
Location 

 
Virtual Meeting 

 
 

 

 

Contact Point 

Rhodri Jones 

01286 679256 

Rhodrijones1@gwynedd.llyw.cymru 

 

Complete Agenda



 

GWE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 

MEMBERSHIP OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE  
 

Voting Members 
 

Councillors 
 

Councillor Ieuan Williams Isle of Anglesey County Council 
Councillor Gill German Denbighshire County Council 
Councillor Julie Fallon Conwy County Borough Council 
Councillor Ian Roberts Flintshire County Council 
Councillor Phil Wynn Wrexham County Borough Council 
Councillor Beca Brown Cyngor Gwynedd 

 

Co-opted Non-voting Members 
 

Dylan Davies Secondary School Representative 
Delyth Roberts Primary Schools Representative 
Alison Fisher Governor Representative 
Jennie Downes Church in Wales 
  

 

Non-voting Officers 
 

Dr Lowri Brown Conwy County Borough Council 
Claire Homard Flintshire County Council 
Garem Jackson Cyngor Gwynedd 
Marc Berw Hughes Isle of Anglesey County Council 
Karen Evans Wrexham County Borough Council 
Geraint Davies Denbighshire County Council 

 

Officers in Attendance 
 

Rhodri Jones Host Authority 
Dewi Morgan Host Authority 
Sion Huws Host Authority 
Arwyn Thomas GwE Managing Director 
Alwyn Jones GwE Assistant Director 
Bethan Eleri Roberts GwE Performance Management Manager 
Gareth Williams GwE Advisory Board 
Graham Boase Denbighshire County Council 

 
  

 



 

 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 

2.   DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declaration of personal interest. 

 
 

3.   URGENT ITEMS 
 

 

 To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chair for 
consideration.  

 

 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

5 - 8 

 The Chair shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of this 
committee held on 23 November 2022 be signed as the true record 
(attached). 

 

 

5.   BUDGET 2022-2023: QUARTER 3 MONITORING 
 

9 - 13 

 To update Joint Committee Members on the latest financial review of GwE’s 
budget for the 2022/23 financial year. 

 

 

6.   GWE BUDGET 2023-2024 (BASE BUDGET) 
 

14 - 19 

 Present to the Joint Committee: 

 GwE Base Budget 2023/24 (Appendix 1) 

 Authorities Financial Contributions (Appendix 2) 

 

 

7.   BUSINESS PLAN 2022-2023: QUARTER 3 MONITORING 
 

20 - 58 

 To present the Quarter 3 Monitoring Report – GwE Regional Business Plan 
2022-2023 to the Joint Committee. 

 

 

8.   WRITTEN STATEMENT: SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT AND THE 
INFORMATION LANDSCAPE - MINISTER FOR EDUCATION AND 
WELSH LANGUAGE 
 

59 - 60 

 To present information to Joint Committee members regarding a Written 
Statement by the Minister for Education and Welsh Language. 

 

 

9.   EIN LLAIS NI PROJECT 
 

61 - 64 

 To share information with members of the Joint Committee on the success 
of the Ein Llais Ni project and the plans for further expansion of the work. 

 

 

10.   CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2023-2024 
 

65 - 67 



 

 Ask the Joint Committee to agree on a calendar of meetings for the coming 
year. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



GwE Joint Committee 23/11/22 

 

1 

 

 

 
GWE JOINT COMMITTEE – 23/11/22 

 

 
Present: 
 
Councillors:  Beca Brown (Cyngor Gwynedd), Julie Fallon (Conwy County Borough Council), 
Gill German (Denbighshire County Council), Ieuan Williams (Isle of Anglesey County Council), 
Phil Wynn (Wrexham County Borough Council),   
 
Officers without a vote: Dylan Davies (Secondary Schools Representative), Jennie Downes 
(The Church in Wales), Claire Homard (Flintshire County Council), Marc Berw Hughes (Isle of 
Anglesey County Council), Garem Jackson (Cyngor Gwynedd) 

 
Officers in attendance:  
  
GwE – Arwyn Thomas (Managing Director), Alwyn Jones (Assistant Director), Bethan Roberts 
(Performance Management Manager). 
Gwynedd Council, Host Authority – Dewi Morgan (Head of Finance Department), Siôn Huws 
(Propriety and Elections Manager), Gwion Jones (Senior Accountant), Einir Rh Davies and 
Lowri H Evans (Democracy Services Officers). 
 
Present for item 5: Yvonne Thomas – Audit Wales 

 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies were received from Dr Lowri Brown (Conwy County Borough Council), Geraint 
Davies (Denbighshire Council), Karen Evans (Wrexham County Borough Council) and Ian 
Roberts (Flintshire County Council). 
 

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 
No declarations of personal interest were received from any members present. 
 

3. URGENT ITEMS 
 
No urgent matters were raised. 
 

4. MINUTES 
 
It was confirmed that the minutes presented from the meeting held on 5 October 2022 were 
correct. 
 

5. TO APPROVE THE REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR ON THE GWE 
ACCOUNTS 

 
The report was presented by the Head of Finance Department who confirmed that the 
Members of the Joint Committee had already received the information in draft form (13 July), 
but an Officer from Audit Wales had now approved the accounts.  He referred to three 
corrections that had been made to the accounts during the audit, these were highlighted in 
Appendix 3 as follows: 
 

Updating the number of staff in some pay bands 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



GwE Joint Committee 23/11/22 

 

2 

 

Grant funding amounts – in which lines they appear within the accounts (see the 
explanation) 
A couple of typos, which have now been corrected. 
 

The Audit Wales Officer elaborated on the above, and confirmed that the report showed a 
clear and fair picture, drawing attention to the following matters: 
 
Page 4 - 441 
Independent working   
Electronic signatures 
 
She confirmed that they were not matters of significance, and that there were no 
misstatements. 
 
Thanks were expressed for the detailed reports and for the joint-working.   
 
RESOLVED 
 
To accept and approve the report on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales, to approve the 
2021/22 accounts, and to authorise the Chair to sign the letter of representation on behalf of 
the Joint Committee. 
 

6. GWE BUDGET 2022-23 – QUARTER 2 REVIEW 
 
Submitted – the Quarterly Review which forecast an underspend by the end of 2022/23 as 
follows:  
 
Employees – Quarter 2: underspend (£46,552) in relation to staffing costs compared with: 
underspend (£84,046) forecast at the end of Quarter 1 
Building: Quarter 2: £25,367 overspend in relation to income shortage, but this income 
stream is expected to improve.  An overspend of £25,367 had been forecast at the end of 
Quarter 1 
Transport: Quarter 2: underspend (£59,759), as a result of less travelling, and new ways of 
working.  At the end of the 1st Quarter an underspend of (£46,771) was forecast 
 
It was noted that there was a net total underspend of £91,900. 
 
The Managing Director of GwE reported that Quarter 2 was always difficult and that the main 
activities took place in Quarter 3 (September to December) where they would expect to see a 
change. 
 
It was questioned, since reserves were not permitted, whether there was a minimum 
reserves threshold? It was confirmed that there was no restriction on how the underspend 
fund may be used, such as for transition or buying time.  Although there was no specific 
figure, at least £100,000 was assumed. 
 
The Managing Director of GwE reminded those present that before lockdown, the reserve 
budget had been less than £200,000.  He noted that they must wait for the December 
Settlement and examine the implications going forward. 
 
The Chair referred to issues with vacant posts and recruitment and enquired if there were 
challenges in terms of secondments, and confirmation was given that this had been a 
challenge in the secondary sector for some years, but it was now a cause for concern in the 
primary sector too. 
 
 
 

Page 6



GwE Joint Committee 23/11/22 

 

3 

 

RESOLVED 
 
To accept and approve the report on the GwE Budget 2022-2023 – Quarter 2 Review 
 

7. GWE 2022-23 REGIONAL BUSINESS PLAN – QUARTER 2 MONITORING 
REPORT  

 
The report was submitted by the Managing Director of GwE, providing an illustration of 
activity from July to September.  It was confirmed that discussions had taken place on the 
curriculum, that the support work was continuing and that schools were willing to share 
where they had reached thus far. 
 
In terms of Leadership, the officer stated that many were attending the courses, and many of 
these could potentially be future leaders. 
 
It was noted that it was pleasing to see the Llais Ni project coming to fruition. 
 
Members enquired about the figures in terms of training and supporting clusters with the 
transformation.  The Managing Director of GwE noted that they were at a point of change.  
There was a significant shortage of supply teachers, and although it was good to have the 
face-to-face meetings, presentations were now being recorded because of the pressure on 
small schools.  Different schools were at varying levels of maturity. 
 
Reference was made to tracking progress and pupil assessment, specifically in respect of 
360, and how this correlates with the new framework. The Managing Director of GwE 
confirmed that key work had been carried out in terms of pupils' skills and that the tracking 
work was continuing. 
 
He referred to the Workshops on Evaluating and Capturing Impact, and noted the need to 
compile a paper on this and work with schools on the layout of the report, with the same 
principles running through them. 
 
The Chair confirmed that it would be good to have input. It was confirmed that the Managing 
Director of GwE would submit a paper to the joint committee when more information was 
available.   
 
RESOLVED  
 
To accept and approve the Quarter 2 Monitoring Report – GwE 2022-2023 Regional 
Business Plan. 
 

8. THE INTENTION TO REVIEW CURRENT OPERATIONAL ARRANGEMENTS AND 
STAFFING STRUCTURE 

 
The report was submitted by the Managing Director of GwE, requesting permission to carry 
out this piece of work with the Joint Committee's support.  He noted that there would be 
emphasis on strengthening the close collaboration that already existed between GwE and 
the Local Authorities.   
 
The Chair noted that this was very timely and that the Joint Committee would be glad of the 
opportunity to make observations in due course.  The Managing Director of GwE confirmed 
that the Joint Committee would have the opportunity to feed into the paper and discuss it 
further. 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



GwE Joint Committee 23/11/22 

 

4 

 

RESOLVED 
 
To accept and approve the intention to review the current operational arrangements and 
staffing structure. 
 

9. THE JOINT COMMITTEE'S LETTER TO THE MINISTER FOR THE WELSH 
LANGUAGE AND EDUCATION 

 
Following the previous meeting and the pressure in terms of accountability, it was confirmed 
that a letter had been sent to the Minister, and a copy sent to the region's schools for 
information.  It was noted that the letter had been addressed at the Headteachers' Forum 
and that the Joint Committee's support had been appreciated.  It was confirmed that it would 
be placed back on the agenda for another meeting in future, as the response from the 
Minister's office had arrived late. 
 
RESOLVED  
 
To accept and note the contents of the Joint Committee's Letter to the Minister for the Welsh 
Language and Education 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 10:30am and concluded at 11:20am 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
 

CHAIR 

Page 8



GwE: Joint Committee 15/02/23 

 

 

1 

 

MEETING GwE Joint Committee 

DATE 15 February 2022 

TITLE GwE Budget 2022/23 – 3rd Quarter Review 

PURPOSE  To update Joint Committee members on the latest financial 

review of GwE’s budget for the 2022/23 financial year. 

 The report focuses on the significant financial variances, 

with Appendix 1 containing the full financial information. 

RECCOMENDATION To accept the report. 

AUTHOR GwE Managing Director and Gwynedd Council Head of Finance. 

 

 

1. CONCLUSION 

 

1.1 Based on third quarter expenditure and income and estimates based on 

management explanations, this review forecasts a semi-neutral position with a 

net underspend of (£27,423) by the end of the 2022/23 financial year. 

 

1.2 The following section of this report explains the reasons behind the main 

variations predicted. 

 

  

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



GwE: Joint Committee 15/02/23 

 

 

2 

2. FINANCIAL VARIANCES 

 

2.1 Employees:  

Quarter 3:  overspend £12,711 Quarter 2: underspend (£46,552) 

 A slight overspend is reported in this period. With the value of the budget at £3.3m 

net, this amounts to a semi-neutral position. GwE has been able to appoint staff 

in recent months to positions that had been vacant as well as appoint a few 

temporary staff to work while members are away on maternity leave. 

 

 

2.2 Building: 

Quarter 3:  overspend £23,787 Quarter 2: overspend £25,367 

No material change to what was reported in Quarter 2. Rent from the use of GwE 
buildings is dependent on income from schools, authorities and internal use by 
projects that are funded through grants. These activities restarted in September, 
and so it is anticipated that this income stream will improve during the year, but 
a lack of income for the period from April to August will lead to overspending. 

 
 
2.3     Travel 
          Quarter 3:  underspend (£54,046) Quarter 2: underspend (£59,759) 

No material change to what was reported in Quarter 2. After being suspended 

during the Covid-19 crisis, visits to schools have now resumed. However, new 

ways of working have generally led to more virtual meetings, and therefore less 

travel. 

  
 
 
3. THE GENERAL FUND 

 

3.1 At the beginning of the 2022/23 financial year, the fund totalled £437,503.   

 

 

3.2 The fund total at the end of 2022/23 is estimated at £481,996 having taken into 

account the underspend of (£27,423) anticipated above, along with the 

contribution to the fund for Information Technology equipment renewal (£17,070). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



GwE: Joint Committee 15/02/23 

 

 

3 

APPENDICES 

Appendix 1: GwE Budget 2022/23 – 3rd Quarter Review. 

 

OPINION OF STATUTORY OFFICERS 

 

Monitoring Officer: 

Nothing to add from a propriety perspective 

 

Statutory Finance Officer: 

Co-author of the report 

 

Page 11



Atodiad  1

GwE JOINT COMMITTEE -  NORTH WALES COUNCILS  -  Budget Review 2022/23 : Third Quarter October - December 2022

Over / (Under) Over / (Under)

Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 3 Estimated Spend Net Spend Net

Budget Adjustments Budget Expenditure Quarter 3 Quarter 2

£ £ £ £ £ £

Expenditure

Employees

    Salaries

        -  Management, Brokerage, Standards and Administration 914,159 55,903 914,159 824,297 (89,862) (77,730)

        -  Supporting Improvement Advisers 4,029,640 138,851 4,168,491 4,184,995 16,504 (115,388)

        -  Staff on Secondment 155,661 46,362 202,023 202,023 0 0

        -  Transferred against 'Specific Projects' (1,835,832) (194,754) (1,974,683) (1,888,614) 86,069 146,566

    Training, advertising and other employee costs 44,070 44,070 44,070 0 0

Building

    Rent (includes services) 179,274 179,274 179,274 0 0

    'Specific Projects' usage of offices recharge (60,880) (60,880) (37,093) 23,787 25,367

Travel

    Travel Costs 142,041 856 142,897 88,851 (54,046) (59,759)

Supplies and Services

    Furniture, equipment, printing, postage, telephone, room hire etc 75,520 75,520 65,105 (10,415) (10,000)

    Information Technology (contribution to renewal fund) 17,070 17,070 17,070 0 0

    Audit Fees 11,853 11,853 11,853 0 0

Brokerage 298,745 298,745 298,745 0 0

Gwynedd Council Host Authority Support Service Costs

    Legal 5,925 5,925 5,925 0 0

    Human Resources 10,160 10,160 10,160 0 0

    Finance 43,933 43,933 43,933 0 0

    Information Technology 48,591 48,591 48,591 0 0

National Model Commitments 469,948 469,948 469,948 0 0

Specific Projects

    Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant 10,808,960 4,568 10,813,528 10,813,528 0 0

    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Looked After Children 1,125,850 1,125,850 1,125,850 0 0

    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Strategic Advisor 100,000 100,000 100,000 0 0

    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Consortia Led Funding 257,118 257,118 257,118 0 0

    Newly Qualified Teachers (NQT) 346,769 312,195 658,964 658,964 0 0

    ALN Transformation Grant 11,346 11,346 11,886 540 0

    Fin-Ed Pathfinder Project 10,625 10,625 10,625 0 0

    Informal use of Welsh program (ages 3-18) 207,720 207,720 207,720 0 0

    Ein Llais Ni – Oracy Scheme 210,900 210,900 210,900 0 0

Total Expenditure 17,629,166 363,981 17,993,147 17,965,724 (27,423) (90,944)

P
age 12



Atodiad  1

Over / (Under) Over / (Under)

Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 3 Estimated Spend Net Spend Net

Budget Adjustments Budget Income Quarter 3 Quarter 2

£ £ £ £ £ £

Income
Core Service Contributions

   - Anglesey Council       (21/22: 10.16% - 22/23: 10.14%) (445,643) (445,643) (445,643) 0 0

   - Gwynedd Council       (21/22: 17.63% - 22/23: 17.59%) (772,960) (772,960) (772,960) 0 0

   - Conwy Council           (21/22: 15.28% - 22/23: 15.26%) (670,688) (670,688) (670,688) 0 0

   - Denbighshire Council  (21/22: 15.36% - 22/23: 15.48%) (680,010) (680,010) (680,010) 0 0

   - Flintshire Council        (21/22: 22.72% - 22/23: 22.67%) (996,049) (996,049) (996,049) 0 0

   - Wrexham Council       (21/22: 18.86% - 22/23: 18.86%) (828,867) (828,867) (828,867) 0 0

Specific Projects

    Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant (10,808,960) (10,808,960) (10,808,960) 0 0

    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Looked After Children (1,125,850) (1,125,850) (1,125,850) 0 0

    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Strategic Advisor (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) 0 0

    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Consortia Led Funding (257,118) (257,118) (257,118) 0 0

    Newly Qualified Teachers (NQT) (346,769) (312,195) (658,964) (658,964) 0 0

    ALN Transformation Grant (11,346) (11,346) (11,346) 0 0

    Fin-Ed Pathfinder Project (10,625) (10,625) (10,625) 0 0

    Informal use of Welsh program (ages 3-18) (207,720) (207,720) (207,720) 0 0

    Ein Llais Ni – Oracy Scheme (210,900) (210,900) (210,900) 0 0

Income from Secondments (155,661) (46,362) (202,023) (202,023) 0 0

Other Income 0 (5,424) (5,424) (5,424) 0 (856)

Total Income (17,629,166) (363,981) (17,993,147) (17,993,147) 0 (856)

Total Income over Expenditure 0 0 0 (27,423) (27,423) (91,800)

Memorandum - 

The General Fund

Fund balance as at 1 April 2022 (437,503) (437,503)

Add - Information Technology (contribution to fund) (17,070)

Add/Less - (Under)/Overspend 2022/23 (27,423) (91,800)

Less - Use of the Fund 0 0

Fund balance as at 31 March 2023 (481,996) (529,303)

P
age 13



GwE Joint Committee 15/02/23 

 

 

1 

 

MEETING GwE Joint Committee 

DATE 15 February 2023 

TITLE Base Budget 2023/24 

PURPOSE Present to the Joint Committee : 

 GwE Base Budget 2023/24 (Appendix 1) 

 Authorities Financial Contributions (Appendix 2) 
 

RECOMMENDATION Adopt the base budget for 2023/24 as presented in Appendix 1. 

AUTHOR Gwynedd Council Head of Finance 

 

1.  Base Budget (“stand still”) 

 

1.1 GwE’s budget is continually evolving and reflects the National Model’s core 

business commitments and a significant number of projects funded by grants. 

 

1.2 The financial impact of inflation/price increases has been estimated and 

included in the base budget (based on “stand still”), including salary increases 

and CPI increase (see Appendix 1). It is recommended to establish a budget 

of £17,993,147 for 2023/24, which is the same amount as in 2022/23. 

 

1.3  The authorities' financial contributions are shown in Appendix 2. 

 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



GwE Joint Committee 15/02/23 

 

 

2 

2.  Savings to be Found 

2.1 The attached budget reflects the decision of the Authorities not to add inflation 

in full, and therefore implement a cut in 2023/24. This meant a cut in real 

terms of 5.25% after an increase in costs. 

 

2.2 The actuary reviews the position of the Pension Fund every three years, with 

the latest review, completed in December 2022. The result of this being a 

reduction in the employer's contribution equivalent to £103,964 per year. This 

reduces the cut faced to 2.60%. 

 

2.3 The amount of (£102,112) appears on the "Savings to be Found" line in the 

budget, which corresponds to the 2.60% above. 

 

2.4 Currently, there is insufficient information at hand to identify the financial 

implications of specific grants in 2023/24.  

 

3. The General Fund 

3.1 The report ‘GwE Budget 2021/22 – 3rd Quarter Review’ (previous item on the 

agenda) estimates that there will be about £418,996 in the general fund on 

31/03/2023, this represents less than 3% of GwE’s turnover and in the current 

climate is an appropriate sum to be kept in reserve. 

  

 

 

Appendix:  

Appendix 1 - GwE Base Budget for 2023/24  

Appendix 2 – Local Authority Contributions 2023/24 

 

 

 

VIEWS OF STATUTORY OFFICERS 

 

Page 15



GwE Joint Committee 15/02/23 

 

 

3 

The Monitoring Officer: 

Nothing to add from a proprietary perspective 

 

The Statutory Finance Officer: 

Author of the report 

Page 16



GwE JOINT COMMITTEE  -  NORTH WALES COUNCILS  -  GwE BUDGET 2023-24

Final Inflation Pension Savings Other Final

Budget Adjustment Decrease to be found Adjustments Budget

2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £ £

Expenditure

Employees

    Salaries

        -  Management, Brokerage, Standards and Administration 970,062 58,604 (33,132) 995,534

        -  Supporting Improvement Advisers 4,168,491 169,697 (133,884) 4,204,304

        -  Staff on Secondment 202,023 202,023

        -  Transferred against 'Specific Projects' (2,030,586) (83,611) 63,052 (2,051,145)

    Training, advertising and other employee costs 44,070 3,314 47,384

Building

    Rent (includes services) 179,274 13,481 192,755

    'Specific Projects' usage of offices recharge (60,880) (4,578) (65,458)

Travel

    Travel Costs 142,897 10,681 153,578

Supplies and Services

    Furniture, equipment, printing, postage, telephone, room hire etc 75,520 5,679 81,199

    Information Technology (contribution to renewal fund) 17,070 1,284 18,354

    Audit Fees 11,853 891 12,744

Brokerage 298,745 22,466 321,211

Gwynedd Council Host Authority Support Service Costs

    Legal 5,925 446 6,371

    Human Resources 10,160 764 10,924

    Finance 43,933 3,304 47,237

    Information Technology 48,591 3,654 52,245

Savings to be found 0 (102,112) (102,112)

National Model Commitments 469,948 0 469,948

Specific Projects

    Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant 10,813,528 10,813,528

    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Looked After Children 1,125,850 1,125,850

    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Strategic Advisor 100,000 100,000

    Pupil Deprivation Grant - Consortia Led Funding 257,118 257,118

    Newly Qualified Teachers (NQT) 658,964 658,964

    ALN Transformation Grant 11,346 11,346

    Fin-Ed Pathfinder Project 10,625 10,625

    Informal use of Welsh program (ages 3-18) 207,720 207,720

    Ein Llais Ni – Oracy Scheme 210,900 210,900

Total Expenditure 17,993,147 206,076 (103,964) (102,112) 0 17,993,147

P
age 17



Final Inflation Pension Savings Other Final

Budget Adjustment Decrease to be found Adjustments Budget

2022/23 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £ £

Income

Core Service Contributions

   - Anglesey Council      (22/23: 10.14% - 23/24: 10.09%) (445,643) (20,900) 10,544 10,356 2,307 (443,336)

   - Gwynedd Council      (22/23: 17.59% - 23/24: 17.53%) (772,960) (36,250) 18,288 17,962 2,728 (770,232)

   - Conwy Council          (22/23: 15.26% - 23/24: 15.17%) (670,688) (31,453) 15,868 15,585 4,022 (666,666)

   - Denbighshire Council (22/23: 15.48% - 23/24: 15.51%) (680,010) (31,890) 16,088 15,802 (1,474) (681,484)

   - Flintshire Council       (22/23: 22.67% - 23/24: 22.79%) (996,049) (46,712) 23,566 23,146 (5,373) (1,001,422)

   - Wrexham Council      (22/23: 18.86% - 23/24: 18.91%) (828,867) (38,871) 19,610 19,261 (2,210) (831,077)

Specific Projects

    Regional Consortia School Improvement Grant (10,808,960) (10,808,960)

    Pupil Development Grant - Looked After Children (1,125,850) (1,125,850)

    Pupil Development Grant - Strategic Advisor (100,000) (100,000)

    Pupil Development Grant - Consortia Led Funding (257,118) (257,118)

    Newly Qualified Teachers (NQT) (658,964) (658,964)

    ALN Transformation Grant (11,346) (11,346)

    Fin-Ed Pathfinder Project (10,625) (10,625)

    Informal use of Welsh program (ages 3-18) (207,720) (207,720)

    Ein Llais Ni – Oracy Scheme (210,900) (210,900)

Income from Secondments (202,023) (202,023)

Other Income (5,424) (5,424)

Total Income (17,993,147) (206,076) 103,964 102,112 0 (17,993,147)

Total Income over Expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0

P
age 18



Atodiad 2 / Appendix 2

Arall / Other

I'w ariannu gan Funded by 

Cyllideb Chwyddiant 

Lleihad Pensiwn 

i Ariannu 

Arbedion

Targed 

Arbedion 

Addasiadau 

canran 

cyfraniad  

Is-gyfanswm
Addasiad Model 

Cenedlaethol

Budget Inflation

Reduced 

Pension offered 

as saving

Savings Target

Contribution 

proportion 

adjustment

Sub-total
National Model 

adjustment

2022/23 5.25% -2.65% 2.60% 2023/24

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ %

Ynys Môn Isle of Anglesey 397,983 20,900 -10,544 -10,356 -2,060 395,923 47,413 443,336 10.09%

Gwynedd Gwynedd 690,294 36,250 -18,288 -17,962 -2,436 687,858 82,374 770,232 17.53%

Conwy Conwy 598,960 31,453 -15,868 -15,585 -3,592 595,368 71,298 666,666 15.17%

Dinbych Denbighshire 607,285 31,890 -16,088 -15,802 1,316 608,601 72,883 681,484 15.51%

Fflint Flintshire 889,525 46,712 -23,566 -23,146 4,798 894,323 107,099 1,001,422 22.79%

Wrecsam Wrexham 740,222 38,871 -19,610 -19,261 1,974 742,196 88,881 831,077 18.91%

Cyfanswm Total 3,924,269 206,076 -103,964 -102,112 0 3,924,269 469,948 4,394,217 100%

Craidd/Core

Cyllideb Drafft 

Draft Budget

2023/24

P
age 19



GwE: Joint Committee 15/02/23 

 

1 

 
 

REPORT TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE  
 

15 FEBRUARY 2023 
 

 
Report by:      Arwyn Thomas, GwE Managing Director   
 
Subject:          GwE Regional Business Plan 2022-2023 - Quarter 3 Monitoring Report  
 

  
 

1.0  Purpose of the Report  

1.1  To present the Quarter 3 Monitoring Report - GwE Regional Business Plan 2022-2023 to the      

Joint Committee.    

 

2.0  Background  

2.1 The Business Plan sets out our vision, values and behaviours and the priority areas for 

improvement across the region.      

 

2.2 Our strategic priorities recognise the present regional and national priorities. The main areas 

for development were identified through the service’s self-evaluation process. 

 

2.3 Progress against the Regional Business Plan is reported on a quarterly basis to the Joint 

Committee.  Attached is the monitoring report for quarter 3.   

 

3.0   Considerations  

3.1 The Managing Director and Chair of the Management Board have responsibility for 

delivering the Regional Plan, as accountable officers. The Joint Committee is ultimately 

accountable for delivering the plan.   

 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



GwE: Joint Committee 15/02/23 

 

2 

 

 

3.2 The GwE Business Planning Framework ensures clarity and strategic harmony in achieving 

priorities locally, regionally and nationally. Throughout the year, reports associated with our 

priority streams within the Business Plan will be reported through our governance groups.    

 

3.3 Detailed service plans underpin these priorities, which note the support and provision 

available to all schools in the region. How and when each priority will be achieved is 

outlined, and expectations set in terms of next steps in realising the reform journey.   

 

4.0  Recommendations  

4.1  The Joint Committee is asked to approve and accept the monitoring report for quarter 3.   

4.2  To decide whether there are any aspects they wish to discuss further in future meetings.    

 

5.0 Financial Implications 

5.1  There are no financial implications arising from this report. GwE will operate within current 

financial resources.   

 

6.0  Equalities Impact   

6.1  There are no new equalities implications arising from this report.   

 

7.0  Personnel Implications  

7.1  There are no new personnel implications arising from this report.   

 

8.0  Consultation undertaken  

8.1  Consultation with GwE Management Board and Joint Committee. 

 

9.0  Appendices  

9.1  Appendix 1 - Quarter 3 monitoring report  

       Appendix 2 - Regional Data for quarter 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



GwE: Joint Committee 15/02/23 

 

3 

OPINION OF STATUTORY OFFICERS  
 
Monitoring Officer:  
Nothing to add from a propriety perspective. 

 
Statutory Finance Officer: 
I am satisfied that the update is a fair reflection of the situation.  I have no further comments from 

the perspective of financial propriety. 

 

 
 

Page 22



 

 www.gwegogledd.cymru  @GwEGogleddCymru 

 

 

 

  

GwE Business Plan  

2022-2023 

Quarter 3  

Progress Report 

Page 23



 

  CONTENT 

 

1. GwE Regional Business Plan 2022-2023 
 

 Regional priorities and provision contributing to local authority priorities - Progress report for 
Quarter 3 

 

 

2. Appendix:  Regional Data  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 24



1. GwE REGIONAL BUSINESS PLAN 
 

REGIONAL PRIORITES & PROVISION 2022-2023 
 

Progress report for Quarter 3 
 

OBJECTIVE 1 - CURRICULUM & ASSESSMENT  

Supporting a national curriculum with equity & excellence at its core that sets high standards for all learners 

EDUCATION CONTINUUM 3 TO 16 

Support for schools in commencing the Curriculum for Wales with strong emphasis on the 12 pedagogical 
principles, evidence-based practice and action research. Further development of formative assessment.  
Promote learner transition by ensuring effective direct engagement between secondary and primary schools.  
Support cross sector collaboration to ensure consistency of effective teaching practice to support learner 
transition.  
One secondary and one primary lead school from 12 clusters across the region have declared an interest in                  

participating in the regional pedagogy transition action research project launched in the GwE Transition ‘Pontio’ 

workshop on 07/10/22.  A Launch meeting for the 24 schools and their SIAs was held on 12/12/2022.  All schools 

and SIAs attended. Schools shared intended focus for their research and collaboration and had opportunities to 

share and plan their collaboration.  Half termly review meetings have been arranged until the end of the calendar 

year to discuss and share actions and impact.  The Project Google Classroom has been set up for sharing and collab-

orating.  It is early days in terms of impact, but all schools have a clear picture of each other’s focus and are clear on 

their next steps. Support material have been placed in Google classroom.  Schools will begin research and collabo-

ration during Spring Term 2023.   

Support for schools in commencing the Curriculum for Wales with strong emphasis on the 12 pedagogical 
principles, evidence-based practice and action research.  
Develop practitioners understanding of how the theory of the 12 pedagogical principles translates into classroom 
floor practice. 
Regional 3-8 age group network has been delivered for practitioners and SIAs, sharing guidance on Enabling        

Learning (the period of learning leading to Progression step 1) and case studies shared by schools from each LA 

involved in GwEs informed research project ‘Communication Friendly Spaces Approach’.  Practitioners discussed 

how they had reflected and reviewed their learning environment both indoors and outdoors and the impact of their 

provision on learners in line with Enabling Learning guidance. Presentations and case studies have been uploaded 

on to the GwE Support Centre enabling all school regionally to access them.  

Regional workshops have been delivered regionally for teachers and TAs new to the 3-8 age group focusing on the 

principles of Enabling Learning and AOLEs within this age group and effective pedagogy. Those who attended have 

a secure knowledge and understanding of the three enablers within Enabling Learning, pedagogy and the curriculum 

to transfer into classroom practice. 

Regional digital workshop has been co-delivered on developing skills within 3-8 age group (see Digital Business Plan 

Q3 monitoring report).   

Joint practitioner and SIA delivery of cluster woodwork workshops exemplifying impact of Woodwork provision on 

the development of skills across AOLE’s, cross-curricular skills and integral skills. Case studies shared demonstrated 

effective methods of observation and assessment through real life authentic experiences which positively impacted 

pupil’s overall progress and well-being.   

Support with pedagogy, formative assessment the 4 purposes, assessment, planning and transition:   
Continue to work with schools to develop a whole school primary Pupil Progress Record that aligns with the 
principles of the new curriculum: 
Schools across the region are continuing to revise and adapt their assessment recording procedures with some 
trialling the completed GwE tracker.   Training in implementing this has been led for all SIAs to support their schools 
and clusters - bespoke training for schools and clusters on request, and for all schools through a series of on-line 
training events, and in the ‘Inspired Leadership’ conference.  Training has been very well received as tracker meets Page 25



what schools require currently.   
 
Appropriate schools are now fully implementing the Pupil Progress tracker and using this effectively to stimulate 
professional dialogue and track learning and achievement linked to the Curriculum for Wales.  This will enhance 
learning and improve progression through improving communication and targeting support.  Awareness has been 
raised about the usefulness and relevance of the tracker, this has underlined key messages about the Curriculum 
for Wales and underpinned principles. 
 
Support schools in developing their own effective assessment processes: 
Schools across the region are continuing to trial various means of recording pupil assessment. GwE SIAs continue to 
advise, share good practice and offer possible solutions to individual schools and/or clusters during meetings with 
Headteachers, by attending staff meetings or during cluster discussions. 
 
On-going support for schools in developing assessment has taken place, including sharing of successful practice, 
either bespoke by SIAs for schools and clusters, and LA staff where relevant, or through accessing on-line sessions 
delivered last term.   SIAs have had access to these sessions to support their own clusters.   
 
Partnership working with schools to develop professional dialogue has taken place on a bespoke basis, as well as 
key messages being shared through regional training.  Schools having successful practice in this area have been      
identified and their practice shared.    

 

Due to upskilling of workforce in assessment within the Curriculum for Wales, schools are aware of their next steps 
and are further developing, designing and embedding assessment provision.  This is making a key difference in 
improving schools’ focus upon assessing learners holistically.  
 
Support schools in building upon existing and sharing good practice to facilitate effective engagement between 
the learner, parents/carers and practitioners: 
GwE continue to share good practice across the region building upon how many schools have refined their processes 
during Covid.  
 
Transition 
ITE students have been updated in planning for successful transition on 03/10/2022 - GwE Keynote lecture and 2-
hour workshop for 140 PGCE students in CaBan resulting in ITE teachers across the region being upskilled in ways 
to support successful transition.   
 
Schools are now beginning to develop new arrangements for cluster collaboration to support 3-16 progression.  This 
work links to the SIG and CfW.  Schools and clusters across the region have been upskilled in ways to support 
successful transition through the GwE Transition ‘Pontio’ workshop that took place on 07/10/2022, focusing on 
successful transition in line with Curriculum for Wales.  2 primary schools and the secondary school were invited 
from all clusters.  Nearly all clusters attended, and the very small minority who did not attend, are being supported 
by their SIA.  Feedback from the workshop has been very positive and practical, and the next steps have been 
planned by each cluster which should prove impactful.   
 
All clusters across the region have been collaborating to create new transition plans and projects, and these are at 
varying stages of development.  Key messages from the workshop have been shared with SIAs and schools.   A follow 
up event of sharing successful practice is planned for 17/03/2023 where all clusters will be invited.  Dave Harris will 
attend, and this will include an opportunity for questions and answers.   
 
The next steps following the workshop are: 

 Support clusters in transition of pedagogy pilot project  

 Develop sharing platform to broaden successful practice 

 Support individual and groups of clusters in developing a cluster vision for transition 

 Support individual clusters and schools in improving transition – Building relationships, collaboration, 
sharing learning, progression in skills, explore wider context of transition, particularly beyond Y6-7 

 Develop sharing success workshop for March under umbrella of ‘Inspired Leadership’ with clusters from 
each LA invited to attend. 
 Page 26



CURRICULUM REALISATION (CURRICULUM FOR WALES) 

Provide professional learning and bespoke support and guidance to schools and settings to help them realise all 
aspects of the Reform Journey by implementing the new curriculum based on their individual starting points. 
A series of National Curriculum for Wales (CfW) Professional Learning online sessions continue to take place to 
support leaders and teachers to continue their work on CfW.  Cross regional team work collaboratively to plan and 
deliver national programme to include school examples and opportunities for schools to discuss practice with other 
schools across Wales within breakouts.  Recordings and resources shared are available on a cross-regional website 
available through HwB to all schools and practitioners through Wales.  Across GwE, staff continue to work within 
teams to identify support packs as part of the regional PL programme.    
 
The impact is as follows:   

 Increasing number of professional learning sessions to support teachers with practical examples shared from 
schools on sharing their process.  

 Positive levels of engagement from schools across Wales with over 327 practitioners attending with the majority 
of these being members of SLT – GwE schools have over 143 practitioners attending.  

 Evaluation forms of the CfW programme show that of participants who have completed evaluation forms, 100% 
strongly agree or agree that they are satisfied with the learning experience.  

 Bespoke cluster and school professional learning sessions being requested from GwE to support whole school 
and staff training to support curriculum discussions, for example, GwE presenting on integral skills in all AOLEs 
for secondary schools working together on common INSET day in November 2023.   

 All SIAs engaged in regular professional dialogue with SLT members across all schools during Autumn term to 
identify professional learning for school staff – information to date on priorities indicates that 217 schools have 
CfW as a priority.   
 

GwE Support Centre continues to support schools to access professional learning through a blend of approaches. 

Sessions are recorded and these include examples of schools sharing their practice. Feedback shows these are well 

received by schools, being used to support professional dialogue within the school. Out of the 3842 viewings of 

support materials, 2025 are primary based practitioners and 1817 are secondary based practitioners.   

AREAS OF LEARNING AND EXPERIENCE (AoLE) TEAMS 

Ensure that all practitioners from all settings have access to high quality Professional Learning and support in the 
discipline of the AOLEs and cross-cutting themes  
The first regional network meeting for this academic year has taken place. Feedback on the initial weeks of new 
curriculum were generally positive although recognised that very early days.  Feedback has been received on the 
structure and organisation of meetings moving forward taking into consideration the purpose and the opportunity 
to use local forums for discussions.  Proposed new meeting structure has been shared with GwE Management Board 
and with staff.  The next regional meeting planned to introduce this and develop support plans for identifying good 
practice will be held in January 2023.  Formal evaluation with Bangor University in ongoing.   
 

 

OBJECTIVE 2- DEVELOPING A HIGH-QUALITY EDUCATION PROFESSION 

Improving the teaching & learning in our schools 

MODERN FOREIGN LANGUAGES (MFL) 

Support the development and delivery of meaningful international language provision in Wales. 

Provide principles and raise awareness across all education settings on the importance of multilingualism and 

prioritising of languages and widening of learner choices. 

Work is continuing with the regional and local groups developing this awareness across sectors.  Regular updates 

and resources around multilingualism is provided on the GwE Support Centre MFL section as well as on the 

newsletter.  It is intended to commission some schools to showcase how they develop and raise the value of 

multilingualism in their settings and the impact on their learners. 

 

Support schools and settings to plan their international language provision.  
Global Futures (GF) GwE Primary and Secondary team meetings: the teams meet regularly to discuss the                        

Page 27



development and implementation of the business plan to deliver on the strategic actions of the Global Futures pro-
gramme.  
 
School to school and cluster support primary: the Lead schools have continued to work within their cluster and 
contacts.  Lead Schools and GF Lead have also responded and provided support to individual schools or to other 
clusters.  Some schools have invited Leads to present to all staff during after school meetings.  Meetings are very 
positive as they offer the opportunity to understand better the aims and expectations of international language in 
the primary in line with the Curriculum for Wales guidance. 
 
Professional learning offer: Uptake on the autumn term professional learning offer was very good and feedback very 
positive. We are hoping that this will generate further traction and increase engagement by other schools as their 
curriculum design for international language develops. 
 
Network Meetings: survey amongst attendees of face-to-face training in November indicated that they would 
welcome termly Network meetings for primary practitioners. The GF GwE Primary Team discussed and agreed on 
format and venues. Dates and agenda are agreed during GF GwE Primary Team meetings to ensure consistency of 
messages and approach but will allow for context specific differences. 
 
School to school support secondary:  Hub Leaders and International Language Lead continue to provide support to 
individual schools or cluster to respond to request.  Termly Network meetings: November meetings were well            
attended and productive.  The Global Futures GwE offer outlined in the half-termly newsletter, including                     
professional learning and CfW development projects are responding directly to the needs identified by HoDs in the 
summer. Schools are signing up to the various opportunities which will take place in the next quarter.   
 
Designing for Languages within CfW: Programme for Pilot schools 2022-2023 with Professor Jenny Eddy of Queens’ 
College, New York University (Secondary sector): During Quarter 3, two days of face-to-face training with Professor 
Jenny Eddy was very well attended with excellent feedback from MFL and Welsh practitioners as well as member of 
the Regional Group members.  All collaborating schools gained deeper understanding around the principles of           
Articulated Assessment for Transfer Tasks and reflected constructively on their planning process and practices.  All 
collaborated with colleagues and produced at least one ‘Articulated Assessment Transfer Tasks’ (AATT) with support 
from Professor Jenny Eddy’s expertise and guidance.  The aims and expectations for next stage were shared and 
understood.  Optional on-line drop-in sessions for further support were organised on 28/12.2022 and 15/12/2022 
with Jenny Eddy present.  Google Classroom was created for schools to post their developing work and collaborate 
further.  Guidance and help to review and develop AATT and Unit materials was created and shared via the Google 
Classroom, drop-in sessions and emails.  One further optional all-day face-to-face session will be organised on 
24/01/2022 and further support will be available on request. 
 
In addition to this work, the GF Lead liaised with Caban (ITE programme) and has organised for this workstream to 
be shared with undergraduates to support their focus on Curriculum design (see below for more details on 
collaboration between Global Futures GwE and ITE Caban.) 
 
GwE will present the work being developed in North Wales to the annual Languages World Conference organised 
by the Association for Language Learning (ALL) in March 2023.  This will enable to showcase the practical examples 
of innovative and effective practices and approaches our North Wales schools are developing to improve the quality 
of language learning.   The ALL conference is a prestigious and extremely well-attended UK-wide conference where 
a wide range of renowned and acclaimed educationalists and MFL experts present the latest evidence-based 
research and developments.  This will be a great opportunity to raise awareness and understanding around our new 
Curriculum for Wales and to put a spotlight on its forward-looking and empowering framework for practitioners.  
This will be the second time Global Futures GwE will be representing North Wales at the conference (March 2021).   
 
Continue to build on activity at primary schools to prepare for CfW 
Lead schools are continuing with their planning and developing their next stages of development.  Through the 
various communications with schools engaging with the Global Futures events and offer, guidance and support is 
provided to develop the curriculum which best suits their school and context.  
 
Projects in progress:  

 International projects and Taith Programme in progress: Rugby in France and Wales - Normandy.  Action Page 28



plan and list of activities have been agreed and is being implemented.  Project development and practice 
was shared with colleagues during the 16/11/2022 training day- very positive impact with schools inspired 
to embark in similar projects. 

 Power Language training and links with France, Spain and Germany 2023-2024: PL schools. 

 British Sign Language (BSL): developing curriculum and SoL for BSL as IL beginner level.   

 Power language Resources: Embedding languages within the curriculum: training session on 16/11/2022 
very well attended and Feedback overwhelmingly positive.  Positive impact on teachers’ enthusiasm,   
confidence and range of practical ideas to develop IL teaching and learning. 

 Upskilling course: French Languages for primary teachers – 09/11/2022 (follow up from July sessions) and 
January 2022-2023.  Based on the use of literature to develop language and language acquisition.  Discussion 
on further sessions discussed and agreed for January 2023.   

 Primary Network meetings for IL:  GF Primary Team agreed on termly face-to-face meeting.  First meeting: 
February 2023.  

 
Links with MFL mentoring - Year 8/9 mentoring: 
2022-2023: 21 schools in GwE: full capacity (+ 4 on reserve list) 
As every year, we have been promoting the MFL mentoring scheme which aims to develop learners’ awareness and 
understanding of the benefits of learning an international language at KS4.  Every year, the number of schools 
showing an interest is rising. The number of returning schools is high, showing they feel the programme has a 
positive impact on their learners’ perceptions of languages. 
 
Let’s take languages: Bangor University Day  
10/11/2022: Over 150 pupils attended the workshops featuring language tasters and useful information about 
studying languages at university and careers.  Feedback from pupils and staff clearly show the positive impact on 
students’ attitude and towards languages as well as aspirations for the future.  Two more days have been organised 
on 31/01/2023 and 01/02/2023.  A total of 25 schools and over 410 students will have taken part.   
 
Designing for Languages within CfW: Programme for Pilot schools 2022-2023.  
The Curriculum design programme “Designing for languages within CfW” will provide pilot schools with a process to 
ensure their planning is innovative, based around relevant and current contexts and essential cultural and societal 
questions whilst developing the appropriate language skills and knowledge at the right pace and depth.  This 
planning also aims to make language learning a very positive and attractive experience for learners, which, in turn, 
will encourage more linguists at KS4.  
 
Provide our practitioners with the skills, knowledge and experiences to plan and deliver international languages 

provision.  

Regional Education Consortia and partnerships to continue to provide support for primary and secondary schools 
across their regions to prepare for the CfW.  
All offers from Global Futures partners are shared with schools regularly and through the various communication 
channels available (GwE Bulletin / Twitter, GF GwE Newsletter, emails) and most updates are posted on the GwE 
Support Centre and the GwE website. 
 
Collaboration with the Initial Teacher Education programme CaBan: 
GwE have made links with the Director of the ITE programme in Bangor University to widen the GF GwE offer to 
Associate Teachers and strengthen messages and expertise around the teaching and learning of International 
Languages, especially at primary level, to ensure learning experiences in languages are engaging and foster life-long 
love for languages. 
 
Increase the opportunities for learners to experience languages at primary school and at secondary to experience 

languages alongside examination courses. 

All offers from Global Futures partners are shared with schools regularly through the various channels. The GF Team 
works very closely with schools and identify some offers which may be more relevant to their context.  

 
Taith: The details for the international links programme have been shared and promoted. Schools are encouraged 

to make use of the funding to develop links with partner schools and engage in various projects and professional 

developments. GF GwE Team are in close contact with Taith and ensure that relevant and current details,                     Page 29



development and support offer are shared regularly.  

Oneworld: meeting with the programme director took place in September 2022. Details of opportunities have been 

shared with schools to connect with schools around the world.  

Power Language training and international links - GF GwE is planning, in collaboration with PL, to apply for Taith 

funding and organise a project which will combine international links with schools and immersion training in Spain, 

France and Germany in 2023-2024. Details of schools involved and project to be confirmed in next quarter.   

Provide direct support to secondary schools via the Cardiff University MFL Student Mentoring Project for 2022-
2023. 
Mentoring 22-23: GF GwE has encouraged schools to register their interests and targeted schools where numbers 
were low or who have not engaged with the programme before. Recruitment is promising:  21 schools have been 
offered a place with the project, with 4 of these schools engaging in a new stream called Linking Languages. 4 schools 
are on the reserve list and have been offered as one turbo tutoring session.  
 

HLTA - TALP 

Newly appointed teaching assistants  
Data collection systems were jointly revised with the other Consortia in July 2022.  It was decided nationally that 

teaching assistants need to be encouraged to complete the 4 modules.  This was communicated to all GwE teaching 

assistants registered for Module 1. There is no specific time frame for completion of the training, but we are 

monitoring the teaching assistants who are undertaking the Induction modules to ensure they complete the 4 

modules.  When registering for the programme teaching assistants are added to the GwE Induction TEAMS, as a 

contact point with the Co-ordinator.   The programme was advertised regularly in the GwE Bulletin and the Google 

Classroom for Teaching Assistants.   As a result, there is an increase in the number of teaching assistants completing 

the 4 modules and comments on feedback forms are good overall.  

Practising teaching assistants   

The content of the programme was reviewed nationally with the other Consortia co-ordinators during July 2022.   
By now, during the 2022-23 financial year, 3 clusters have completed the 'Practising teaching assistants' programme, 
and the programme has commenced with 2 other clusters.  Three other clusters are keen to undertake the training 
during this academic year, and 1 other cluster has made initial enquiries.  This is a positive increase on last year's 
cluster numbers.  Positive feedback was received from attendees.  
 
The programme will be available regionally during the Spring term 2023. Face-to-face training will be held in 4 
locations across the region - Mold, St. Asaph and Caernarfon/Bangor and Porthmadog.  This decision is the result of 
feedback from teaching assistants, facilitators of training for practising teaching assistants and Aspiring HLTAs, who 
have resumed face-to-face training.     
 
Aspiring HLTA 
Cylch 4 - the programme was finished in June.  A 'PLR surgery' was offered, to discuss Personal Learning Reflections 
and assessment arrangements. This had a very positive impact, with many teaching assistants improving their 
reflections on professional learning following these meetings.   
A review session was held on 12/9/2022 for applicants for Cylch 4 assessments, and Cylch 4 assessments were held 
17/10/22 – 11/11/2022.  15 applications were submitted for the HLTA Assessment; 12 went forward for assessment 
this time with 20% deciding to undergo assessment during the next phase due to personal circumstances.  
 
The number of Cylch 4 Assessments is generally down nationally due to illness, school circumstances, not enough 
experience of leading classes, lack of qualifications or not completing the Aspiring HLTA programme.  Comments 
received by teaching assistants, facilitators and assessors note a much better understanding of Professional 
Standards and Curriculum for Wales following the training.  Teaching assistants have also valued working with other 
teaching assistants across the region and nationally and their digital skills have improved, with the technical session 
very helpful in this regard.  The oral feedback received was that the majority would prefer face-to-face training.  
 
Cylch 5 - face-to-face Cylch 5 commenced in September 2022 (Welsh and English-medium).  43 applications were 
received - 39 accepted and a place offered to 2 applicants on Cylch 6, which shows healthy numbers across the 
region.  Following recent face-to-face Cylch 5 sessions it was evident that participants' engagement and enjoyment Page 30



is much higher.  It is also evident that teaching assistants have a much better understanding of how to write their 
reflections following face-to-face training.    
 
Cylch 6 - The Aspiring HLTA Cylch 6 was advertised in October/November 2022.  28 applications were received, and 
25 candidates were offered a place.  The programme will commence face-to-face in January 2023.  
 
HLTA status  
Cylch 3 Assessments  
Following attending 8 digital sessions for Aspiring HLTAs, 82% of Cylch 3 Aspiring HLTAs applied for the HLTA status 
assessment.  24 Assessors have been completing Cylch 3 assessments.  Each assessment was moderated regionally, 
and a sample of six moderated nationally.    
 
Cylch 4 Assessments   
Following attending 8 digital sessions for Aspiring HLTAs, 46% of Cylch 4 Aspiring HLTAs applied for the HLTA status 
assessment.  12 Assessors have been completing Cylch 4 assessments.  Each assessment was moderated regionally, 
and a sample of six moderated nationally.    
 
Those who did not go forward with the assessment this time noted they had not secured enough teaching 
experience in the classroom due to the impact of Covid.  These will undergo assessment with Cycle 5, 6 or 7 teaching 
assistants when appropriate.  A number of these teaching assistants have also left education, and assessments were 
lower than usual across each Consortium.  
 
Cylch 4 evaluation comments are positive and a testament to assistants' appreciation of this opportunity to develop 
professionally:  
“I thoroughly enjoyed the course, the co-ordinators made the course fun and interesting, it inspired me and there are 
lots of things I have taken away that I will use going forward in inspiring others. I also found it great to be able to 
listen to so many other aspiring HLTA's point of view on teams and learn from this.” 
“It has allowed me to develop confidence in my current role and develop my professional learning, so I can continue 
to support the learners in school to the best of my ability.” 
“The programme has helped me to lead the learning of my class and my intervention groups more effectively. It has 
improved the learners’ outcomes and their attitudes towards learning.” 
“My assessor was wonderful, patient and reassuring of the process.” 
 
HLTA assessors  
National refresher training was held on 3/10/22 on TEAMS, and a drop-in session for GwE Assessors on 10/10/2022.   
HLTA assessors gave very positive feedback regarding the new system of assessing candidates.  
 
Introduction to Curriculum for Wales 
New training has been jointly created with the other Consortia, to give teaching assistants an introduction to the 
Curriculum for Wales.   The training was split into 2 sessions and was available in both Welsh and English.  The 
sessions were delivered nationally at a variety of times, so that teaching assistants may be released.  
 
The training was adapted to create bespoke training for GwE primary schools, and training has now been delivered 
to 219 teaching assistants.  
 

Welsh Language  

Develop the support for schools to promote the benefits of bilingualism and the advantages of Welsh-medium 
education.    
Regular meetings are held with Local Authority officers in each authority to ensure clarity of implementation as 
regards the Welsh in Education Strategic Plans (WESPs).   Welsh Advisory Teams' objectives are incorporated into 
the GwE business plan to strengthen the joint understanding of the offer from GwE and the authorities.                          
Arrangements for meeting authorities individually are proving to be an effective and constructive approach.  In 
terms of Estyn recommendations pertaining to the Welsh language, school profiles are updated on a regular basis 
along with the support required.   Members of the GwE team attend language forums and associated Local Authority 
sub-committees to help achieve joint understanding of each authority's WESP targets. A national working group has 
been established to develop support and specific professional learning for Welsh-medium schools.  
 Page 31



Support to develop the growth of Welsh-medium provision in English-medium schools 
Self-evaluation guidance for Welsh has been shared in deputy headteacher and headteacher forums.  There will be 
a further review of GwE provision for English-medium secondary schools in those schools demonstrating successful 
practice and who have made strong progress in establishing and sustaining a Welsh ethos.  There has been an             
increase in the number of requests for support for the English-medium secondary sector in line with support plans 
via SIAs; this includes scaling up aspects of Cymraeg Campus to promote bilingualism in the school.  Issue 1 of the 
'O'r Stordy' newsletter for Welsh departments in English-medium secondary schools was circulated at the end of 
the autumn term, which provides information and important links to resources, information, events and support 
networks.  A national working group has been established to develop support for English-medium schools.  The 
working group met during the second half of the autumn term, and work is ongoing in terms of planning resources 
and professional learning to support the new Framework.  The application to extend 'Ein Llais Ni' to English-medium 
schools has been submitted and approved by the Government.   
 
Develop a Welsh language professional offer in preparation for the Curriculum for Wales (3-16) and strengthen 
the collaboration/transition from primary to secondary.   
Members of the GwE team gave a presentation on the Welsh language and Welsh literacy as mandatory elements 
of the CfW in the regional network and in local meetings.  This has resulted in raising awareness of the need to plan 
for strengthening provision to meet mandatory requirements.  The Chairs of the Language, Literacy and  
Communication network have disseminated the information to their local groups.  Four meetings were held with 
primary and secondary headteacher forums in collaboration with the LA to draw attention to Welsh as a statutory 
element of the CfW.   This is a means of raising the profile of the language among headteachers and is an opportunity 
to highlight the need to include Welsh in their curriculum design.   The relevant information has been presented to 
all SIAs in a full team meeting.    
 
In terms of the secondary sector, a website has been created to support secondary Welsh departments (Welsh-
medium and bilingual), for the purpose of sharing information regarding regional and national developments.  This 
is an effective and current approach to sharing updates and is convenient for including relevant links to enable HoDs 
to disseminate further.  Requests to support specific schools are received via the LA (English-medium secondary 
schools).   

 
Develop skills: 
Ein Llais Ni 
80+ teachers have submitted case studies addressing various themes and the impact on teaching and learning.   The 
request to extend this work has been submitted to Welsh Government and has been approved.  A Professional 
Learning resource in the form of a website has been created,  www.einllaisni.cymru  , to collate the resources. A    
Bangor University research report has been completed to evaluate the effectiveness of the project, with a view to 
identifying specific challenges faced in schools in terms of the best ways to get pupils to use their Welsh and the 
skills associated with this.   A student from Bangor University has worked in close collaboration with Professor Enlli 
Môn Thomas and has undertaken research in the field.  This has resulted in preparation of a booklet for practitioners, 
which is a quick reference for teachers on developing the oracy skills of children and young people - O Enau Plant.   
Initial feedback for this resource is very positive.  
 
An event entitled ‘Ein Llais Ni: Datblygu Siaradwyr y Dyfodol’ was held on 22/11/2022.  Schools that have been a 
part of the work made a valuable contribution, and there was representation from Welsh Government, the 'Ein Llais 
Ni' Management Board, Bangor University (lecturers and students), Local Authority Officers, current project schools 
and others with an interest in the work.  Feedback was extremely positive.  
 
Reading: 
The robust collaboration with Bangor University to disseminate the RILL project continues. There will be an invitation 
for schools to join further research funded via Welsh Government.  Bilingual provision has been planned for three 
days Professional Learning for primary and secondary settings. The intention is to explore and develop subject 
knowledge and strategies to enrich provision and have input from a wide range of experts on developing reading 
for pleasure and reading skills.  Cluster training was held on developing enjoyment of reading and higher order 
reading skills.  The session included modelling the successful practice of one school, namely incorporating higher 
order reading skills into purposeful cross-curricular planning.  
 
Literacy: Page 32

http://www.einllaisni.cymru/


A presentation was given in the secondary regional network on the mandatory element of developing literacy when 
delivering the CfW. This has resulted in a greater awareness of the need to include this in each school's curriculum 
design. The initial cluster co-ordinator meetings in each local authority have highlighted the need to further 
strengthen the primary-secondary link, ensuring 2022-23 cluster plans give due attention to developing this  
collaboration.   
 
Develop informal use of Welsh - 'Siarter Iaith' and 'Cymraeg Campus'.   
Siarter Iaith Co-ordinators continue to support clusters to plan for promoting informal use of the Welsh language.   
Each authority has shared what worked well and the challenges during 2021-22, noting the need to strengthen the 
primary-secondary link as a clear aim for the future.   A national meeting was held to discuss and agree on a strategic 
direction for the Siarter Iaith Framework.  There have been purposeful discussions on recommendations noted in 
the 2020 evaluation of the Siarter Iaith: national collaboration to make effective use of funding, define the objective 
of the Siarter Iaith (including Cymraeg Campus), raise the status of the Framework and promote it, challenges and 
possible solutions for using it effectively and purposefully, WG's intention to deliver a new youth programme.  A 
further national meeting has been arranged for the beginning of February 2023.    
 
Promote the profile of the Welsh language amongst leaders in preparation for the Curriculum of Wales and WG's 
target of a million Welsh speakers.      
A resource was shared via the GwE Bulletin, namely a playlist adapted from a resource shared by Central South 
Consortium. This resource helps leaders to report accurately on practitioners' Welsh language skills against the 
Welsh Language Competency Framework when completing the School Workforce Annual Census (SWAC) and  
planning suitable professional learning to strategically develop the language competency of all practitioners.  
 
Two meetings have been held with associates from the Leadership Academy, the regions' MPs, WG officers and 
Estyn to discuss Welsh language leadership.  This has resulted in joint understanding of provision for the variation 
within this area, across Wales.   
 
A further meeting is to be held to co-construct a Welsh language leadership development toolkit, with the objective 
of providing a series of questions for leaders to consider when evaluating their journey as regards developing the 
Welsh language in their schools. The aim is to use this alongside 'The national resource: evaluation and improve-
ment' when undertaking self-evaluation and improvement activities, to ensure specific consideration is given to the 
development of the Welsh language in all schools.  The toolkit is split into 2 areas in alignment with the national 
resource, namely Leadership and Teaching and Learning and the Curriculum.  In each area there are additional  
discussion questions to inspire leaders to consider a number of specific areas as regards the Welsh language.  
 
‘Dylunio ar gyfer ieithoedd CiG’ project - leaders of a number of Welsh Departments in regional secondary schools 
are part of this project in collaboration with other language department leads within the LLC AoLE.   This project is 
specifically a curriculum design project for languages, led by Professor Jenny Eddy from Queens College, New York.  
There has been considerable interest in the project, and discussions with the University/CaBan on the possibility of 
incorporating its principles into PGCE provision.   
 
Develop the Welsh and Welsh-medium workforce - the language skills of the education workforce  
There is a very strong and constructive relationship between GwE, Canolfan Bedwyr, Welsh Government and LAs, 
resulting in strengthening provision to support practitioners develop their language skills.  As a result of these  
discussions, the Welsh in a Year course has been confirmed for September 2022.   Additionally, there is agreement 
to hold part 2 and 3 of the termly Sabbaticals courses in 2023.   14 have been attending the course, with an additional 
12 commencing Part 2 (Intermediate) in January.  
 
The strong link between GwE and the Coleg Dysgu Cymraeg Cenedlaethol ensures opportunities to promote online 
courses for practitioners. There is also an opportunity to try out the tool for finding a course on the appropriate 
level, which is being developed.   5 GwE staff members have attended a week-long course at Nant Gwrtheyrn.  
Consequently, they are developing in confidence to speak Welsh.  7 GwE staff members continue to follow the 
Intermediate Dysgu Cymraeg course through the Cymraeg Gwaith scheme and have had another opportunity at the 
beginning of December to attend a residential course in Nant Gwrtheyrn.  In addition, at least another 6 GwE staff 
members have committed to the Access Course since September.   

 
GwE continues to promote the provision of the National Centre for Learning Welsh and has received statistics  Page 33



highlighting the commitment of regional schools to the training available.  As part of the search facility on its website, 
the Centre has added an option for education practitioners to note an interest in learning Welsh/developing Welsh 
skills through the Sabbaticals Scheme.  The details of those practitioners who have expressed an interest thus far 
are received, so that the LA is aware of who they are and is able to assess their suitability or offer alternative support.   
 

A LEVEL  

Develop effective leaders 
The Middle Leadership Training Programme (post-16) is provided again this year (2 sessions out of 4 have been 
held), now with an option for ILM Level 5 accreditation.  Six Heads of Sixth Form from the region are undertaking 
the national course.  
 
The first Heads of Sixth network meetings have been held, where there was an opportunity to share successful 
practice, express and discuss concerns and contribute to the conference agenda.  
 
A GwE Post-16 Leadership Conference has been arranged for 03/03/2023 in the Conwy Business Centre, and a        
programme put together based on the requirements of Heads of Sixth.  It will include a keynote speech by Vanessa 
Jenkins (Trauma Informed Schools) on supporting students but also ensuring self-care; ALPs workshops; TIS; Esgol; 
SEREN Academy and regional Heads of Sixth sharing successful practice in broadening pupils' horizons and Estyn 
inspection experiences. 
 
Ensure post-16 teaching and learning provision of a high standard:  
A post-16 effective teaching programme for NQTs has been jointly planned and delivered with the other consortia.  
 
Support schools to monitor the progress of post-16 students:  
Use of ALPS on a regional level: some schools are making effective use of ALPs to track learner progress during the 
academic year.  Online ALPs training is available.  3 consecutive sessions: Introduction to ALPs; Effective use of ALPs 
to track progress on both a subject and learner level; Effective use of Alps Connect to analyse results and plan  
improvements. An ALPs workshop has also been planned for the regional Post-16 Leadership Conference on 
03/03/2023, to inspire termly use of the tool to track internal progress in schools.  

 
Support schools to provide a range of approaches to promote their learners' well-being:  
Heads of Sixth network meetings have provided opportunities to share VESPA/Bloom good practice and express any 
general concerns about learner well-being.  There will be a TIS keynote speech and workshop in the regional Post-
16 Leadership Conference.  Arrangements are in place to offer a series of online VESPA training workshops at the 
beginning of the Summer Term 2023.   
 

RESEARCH AND EVALUATION  

KiVa Anti-Bullying Research Project 

As part of GwE’s ongoing initiatives to focus policy and practice on more evidence-informed approaches, this project 

was undertaken with schools in North Wales to evaluate the effectiveness and cost-effectiveness of KiVa anti-

bullying programme in reducing child reported bullying in UK schools compared to usual practice. GwE is a co-

applicant on this large-scale research project to evaluate the impact of the KiVa anti-bullying programme in primary 

schools. Following a pause due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 30 schools in North Wales have been recruited for the 

study. Fifteen of the schools were randomised to receive KiVa in 2021-22, and the remaining 15 schools will receive 

KiVa in 2022-23. The intervention schools were trained in the summer term 2021 and have been delivering KiVa 

from September 2021.  In 2022-23, training and support materials to allow the 15 control schools to receive KiVa 

will be delivered.    

 

Thirty GwE primary schools were recruited in October 2019 as part of a group of 116 schools from across the UK. 

Schools were randomly allocated to either receive training to deliver KiVa or they were assigned as a control school 

to carry on with everyday provision. The intervention schools delivered KiVa from September 2021 to July 2022, and 

researchers are hoping to have provisional findings of the outcomes in both groups at the end of the year. This paper 

is a study protocol where the research team describe the trial in detail for other researchers. The full study findings 

can be accessed by downloading the open access paper using this link: 

The UK stand together trial: protocol for a multicentre cluster randomised controlled trial to evaluate the Page 34

https://bmcpublichealth.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/s12889-022-12642-x


effectiveness and cost-effectiveness of KiVa to reduce bullying in primary schools | BMC Public Health | Full Text 

(biomedcentral.com) 
 

Positive Readiness for Learning (PR4L) Project – Behavioural Scientists in Clusters 

This is a proposal to embed a behavioural scientist to work with a different group of schools – or a cluster – during 

each term in 2022-23. The aim of this project is to provide training and individualised coaching to teachers in the 

classroom to provide confidence and consistency when addressing disruptive behaviour within the classroom.  

 

Teachers and school staff will be encouraged to identify and acknowledge positive behaviour in students and 

respond consistently to behavioural challenges. The aim of the project is to focus on schools with persistent issues 

with either low level disruption and/or staff who want to know more about evidence-informed strategies (preferable 

the former to show impact). For example, meeting staff to improve their understanding of tier 1 (universal) 

behaviour management strategies. Initial discussions have taken place with GwE core leads, and candidate schools 

will be confirmed by the end of January 2023 for work to be undertaken with schools in the summer and autumn 

terms 2024.  

 

KESS ALN Reading Research 
This is a proposal for up to 4 SEN schools in the KESS East region to collaborate with us on a funded KESS2 East MRes 

project from October 2022 - June 2023. This will involve Bangor University, GwE, and SEN schools in the region. The 

MRes student and supervisors will work closely with participating schools to conduct an audit and rapid review of 

assessment and intervention approaches being used, to explore staff experiences and perceptions of current 

provision, and to reflect on the findings, current practices, and ideas for further development and evaluation. We 

hope this collaborative project will enable us to further develop and evaluate areas of strong practice, as well as 

identifying areas for developing provision to help improve reading outcomes for a wide range of learners. Initial 

discussions have taken place with GwE core leads - the participating schools will be confirmed by the end of January 

2023.  

 

Health Economics and PBMA 
This project aims to support and develop headteacher decision making processes using effective decision-making 

methodology and to investigate if schools produce robust effectiveness and social validity data to support 

interventions in the school and consider value for money. It also aims to evaluate the impact of the project by 

tracking changes in provision. To evaluate how headteachers utilise a decision-making tool.  Initial discussion has 

taken place with GwE core leads and candidate schools have confirmed their participation.  These schools started 

engaging in the work from December 2022.    

 

ITE 

Support schools in responding to the education reform journey, with strong emphasis on pedagogy, effective 
teaching and action research.  
Support cross sector collaboration to ensure consistency of effective teaching practice to support learner 
transition.  
Develop the language skills of the education workforce to expand the proportion who can teach and work through 
the medium of Welsh.  
Continue to support collaboration at all levels of leadership to ensure all learners achieve their potential  
Continue to implement regional strategies for children who are vulnerable to learning, concentrating on their 
inclusion, emotional wellbeing, attendance and any additional learning needs to impact positively on their 
progress and wellbeing  
Continuing to develop our work in clusters, alliances and sector transition to improve quality and develop the 
Curriculum for Wales agenda  
 
NQTs are supported consistently across the region, including through their access to professional Learning. A full 
programme of national NQT training has taken place, (6 different sessions) and this will be enhanced further through 
regional training.  Consistency and collaboration are ensured through regular meetings with consortia        colleagues 
nationally, and key messages are shared regionally through regular local meetings.  Good progress is being made 
with the National NQT, EV and IM training programmes.   Page 35

https://bmcpublichealth.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/s12889-022-12642-x
https://bmcpublichealth.biomedcentral.com/articles/10.1186/s12889-022-12642-x


Accreditation meetings have taken place and EWC have provided further guidance and next steps.  Full submission 
of ITE ALN programmes will take place in July 2023 for accreditation from September 2024; these will be Wales’s 
first accredited ALN ITE programmes.  Meetings with WG and EWC continue for relevant advice and to ensure                    
programmes correspond with national priorities for vulnerable learners and ALN.  Currently documentation in          
development is focussed upon aligning the pilot programmes to the new accreditation criteria (which now include 
ALN) and Professional Standards for Teaching and Leadership.  
 
Regional consistency is strengthened through strong collaboration between GwE and CaBan, ensuring a common 
approach to research, professional learning and improved integration as a learning organisation across the region.  
Because of the consistent cultural approaches of the organisations, teachers access up to date and impactful up-
skilling as they progress through their teaching careers, and programmes and learning is personalised to the unique 
needs of the region, as well as responsive to national priorities.  Ultimately this improves teacher retention.  Further 
alignment and collaboration continue with shared meetings and professional learning between key staff.  12 GwE 
staff have delivered sessions on the CaBan ITE programmes; these have included on-line and face-to-face lectures 
and workshops, and a keynote lecture.   These have focussed upon pedagogy, Curriculum for Wales, Human Rights 
and RVE, digital skills, curriculum design and planning, literacy and numeracy and transition.  Further sessions are 
planned for Spring term.  These align professional learning for students with the GwE regional professional offer 
(and ultimately to the National offer).  These sessions reach all ITE students within the university.   

 
Further planned shared professional learning and project opportunities continue including Ein Llais Ni – this is 
planned to include sessions for students to ensure they are familiar with the project and can implement its actions.  
Collaboration has taken place to develop international languages, particularly, in the Primary programmes, including 
developing Research and language pedagogy. 
 
GwE staff have taken part in CaBan quality assurance meetings and there are planned shared quality assurance and 
enhancement engagement opportunities such as lesson studies and monitoring in lead schools throughout the         
academic year.  These include working with schools as well as with CaBan and GwE staff.   
 
Students have access to a range of different ways of becoming teachers, including work-based programmes through 
the OU as well as traditional route to ITE.   Collaboration with the OU continues through regular partnership          
meetings.  Provision has been updated and improved to include further funding for Welsh medium students in sec-
ondary settings.  Information sharing has taken place and there is planned further activity to update stakeholders.   
 
Collaboration to improve Welsh language provision continues strongly, such as through our Ein Llais Ni oracy project.  

Nearly 100 Welsh medium schools across the region participated in the first phase of this project, which included 

some NQT, and around 20 third year students attended our Ein Llais Ni event in November 2022.   

DIGITAL 
Develop digital leadership in regional schools     

The digital facilitators programme continues to develop.   A meeting was held with each facilitator during November 
to discuss the progress of the programme in each cluster.  77% of regional clusters have formed a digital learning 
working group to lead the strategic aspects of the area.  67% of clusters have been successful in formulating a shared 
vision for the cluster, reconciling the objectives of each school and establishing a foundation for any collaborative 
work. 60% of regional clusters have arrangements in place whereby the digital facilitator reports back to cluster 
Headteachers on a regular basis.  We are confident the programme is progressing successfully.  We will be offering 
more individual support for digital facilitators/clusters who are experiencing difficulties in establishing a working 
group, to ensure the work is progressing effectively. Several clusters have successfully embedded the programme 
in their cluster and are examples of working groups that are taking effective action during the first phases of the 
programme.    
 
Provide a programme of professional learning to develop opportunities to raise standards in digital competence 

via Hwb.      

The digital professional learning offer seems to be a success thus far, with 378 practitioners registered to attend 
training sessions. During Quarter 3 training has been held on data handling, modelling and digital competence in 
progression steps 1 and 2. The second day of the training programme for digital leaders was held during Quarter 3.  
The aim of this programme is to ensure development of leadership capacity within clusters, and that more 
individuals are upskilled to support the work of the digital facilitators.  This programme was a success, with very Page 36



positive feedback.  Another cohort of digital leaders will commence the programme during Quarter 4.     
 
Embed 360 Digi Cymru as the region's main self-evaluation tool for digital learning.  
To date, 259 of the region's schools have registered on the digital learning self-evaluation system, 360 Digi Cymru. 
147 schools have revisited the system to update their evaluation.  We continue to encourage schools to engage with 
this review.  We have recorded a series of webinars to ensure there is on demand support available to enable schools 
to engage.  This series was enhanced during Quarter 3.  As part of the digital facilitators programme, the facilitators 
are responsible for encouraging schools to use the self-evaluation system, asking each school in their cluster to 
complete the review over the next term. The data will then be discussed on a cluster level to ascertain strengths 
within the cluster as well as general aspects to be developed.   
 
A new episode of the digital resilience podcast was released during Quarter 3. The episode received positive 
feedback from teachers attending training, as well as from Welsh Government.  There are now 4 podcast episodes 
available in both languages, on platforms such as Spotify and Apple Music. The aim of the podcast is to present 
information to teachers and parents on matters pertaining to online safety, in a timely and convenient way.  
Listeners can tune in whilst going for a walk, or driving.  The podcast has been recognised by Welsh Government 
and is included on Hwb as a resource to support the section on online safety.    
 

MATHS AND NUMERACY 

Bespoke support for schools causing concern 
Primary and Secondary 
Bespoke support has continued for regional schools deemed ‘at risk’ or in ESTYN category. This has resulted in 

improved planning for the teaching and learning of Mathematics and a greater understanding of how numeracy 

supports learning across the curriculum.  Repeated, regular visits/meetings with schools have involved training staff, 

collaboratively supporting them in planning and assessing learner progress, how to track and use this to move 

learners forward and inform their provision, monitoring the impact of activities to date and identifying and sharing 

resources pertinent to school/learner needs within the setting as they implement and move towards Curriculum for 

Wales reform.  New bespoke support requests have been submitted by individual SIAs as part of their support plans 

for schools. 

Current regional support & CfW 

Heads of Maths local network meetings (November 17th, 18th, 21st, 22nd, 23rd, 24th) 

These meetings have resulted in schools sharing good practice, gaining new ideas and resources to use, and Heads 

of Maths becoming fully familiar with the Estyn Inspection framework and the QW consultation.  

 

Personalised Assessments 

SIA’s have continued to support regional Primary, Secondary and Special schools with the effective use of the Online 

Personalised Assessments. This has included bespoke training and sharing of Welsh Government guidance. This has 

ensured schools have been up to date with current guidance and effective practice. 

Basic number skills package 

A 'Basic Number Skills' pack which includes whole class resources and individual resources which can be adapted 

according to the needs of learners across the continuum has been created. They are written in Welsh and English 

and include an answer pack. The resources give learners the opportunity to reinforce and revisit skills that are key 

skills to develop across the continuum, ensuring learners’ fluency in this area. The resources have been hosted on a 

Google Classroom and shared with various schools to trial. These resources have been shared with Secondary 

Numeracy Co-ordinators and will be shared with all Primary schools this term. 

Spring Primary/Secondary Mathematics Workshop 

A regional Primary/Secondary Mathematics workshop has been arranged for the Spring term. Guest speakers and 

venue have been booked in line with the Primary & Secondary Business Plan budget. The objectives of the workshop 

are to promote collaboration across the continuum, develop effective pedagogy and ensure clear consistent 

messages are shared regionally. 

  

 

Page 37



ENGLISH AND LITERACY 

Bespoke support for schools causing concern 
All referrals for bespoke support to schools, requiring support for English medium literacy, were met.  
 
Primary  
To increase capacity to meet the needs of a wider audience of schools who have literacy support needs identified 
by SIAs, a Basic Skills in Literacy professional learning day was held in November 2022.  This has been supported by 
access to a Google Classroom of follow up support materials that individual schools can continue to access. Where 
needed, and in addition to this, SIAs have further referred schools for follow on support, with a deeper focus on 
specific support needs. 
 
Schools commissioned to provide support packs for literacy (speaking/listening, reading, writing) have provided 
presentations that will now become part of the wider GwE support packs.  
 
Secondary  
During November 22 a regional literacy network was offered to all English Medium Secondary schools; the event 
was well attended. The session focus was on Planning for a strategic approach to Literacy and planning for 
progression.  
 
In December 22 a Heads of English Forum was organised and attendance was excellent. The session included a 
briefing from Elan Richards from Qualification Wales and allowed the Subject leads to ask questions directly relating 
the GCSE English Language and Literature consultation.  Delegates were supported to produce a “Planning for 
progression” working document which was distribute to all secondary English departments and has been used as a 
starting point for departmental discussion on progression.  
 
Having attended the WJEC training “Fix it packs” were produced and distributed to support schools to give 
standardised feedback to pupils.   
 
Oracy - WG funding has been used to fund a 3-day development programme, which has been scheduled to begin in 
February 2023. 
 
Reading for Pleasure/Caru@ddarllen 5-day development programme has been organised/commissioned with nearly 
full attendance and is scheduled to begin in January 2023. 
 

THE WELSH LANGUAGE AND LITERACY 

Welsh Language and Literacy Networks 

The regional Literacy Co-ordinators' Network Meeting (Welsh-medium and bilingual schools) has been held along 

with a series of 'On demand' virtual meetings for the region's Welsh leads (in collaboration with Qualifications 

Wales), to provide guidance on how to respond to the 'Have Your Say' consultation on the proposed GCSE 

qualifications.  There will be two network meetings for Welsh leads in English-medium schools at the beginning of 

Quarter 4 along with a network meeting for Welsh leads in Welsh-medium and bilingual schools.  These meetings 

are held in 'host' schools across the region.  Three English-medium schools in the region continue to work in a 

supportive network, and this model of schools working together in alliances will be further developed in English-

medium schools during Quarter 4, following the above network meeting. 

 

Consultation workshops and national working groups  

Leaders continue to be represented on national working groups (e.g., Welsh Subject Level Working Group - 

Qualifications Wales), and the voice of the region is heard in these national discussions. Leaders welcomed the 

guidance and the opportunity to respond to the Qualification Wales consultation during Quarter 3, and 

Qualifications Wales welcomed the opportunity to present the consultation directly to leaders in the above virtual 

meetings.   

 

'Ein Llais Ni' project    

During Quarter 3,  einllaisni.cymru was constructed, where phase 1 project schools' resources and case studies are 

housed. A successful application was made to Welsh Government for funding to continue the project next year.   As Page 38

file:///C:/Users/833785/Downloads/einllaisni.cymru


a part of this application, a number of regional secondary schools involved in the original project agreed to be lead 

schools, with Welsh Department staff in those schools specifically promoting the next phase.   In addition, a number 

of English-medium secondary schools in the region have expressed an interest and wish to join the project to 

develop it further during the next phase, and it is intended to invite them to join the project during Quarter 4.  

 

‘Ein Llais Ni – Datblygu siaradwyr y dyfodol’ event  

This was held in Venue Cymru, Llandudno and there were workshops to present the case studies of four secondary 

schools (and their learners) during this event.  Teachers, members of senior leadership teams and Authority officers 

attended this event and the workshops.  

 
‘Dylunio ar gyfer ieithoedd CiG’ project  
Following collaboration with the SIA for International Languages (see IL/Global Futures Business Plan), the ‘Dylunio 

ar gyfer ieithoedd CiG’ project, led by Professor Jenny Eddy from Queens College, New York, is now operational with 

a representation of LLC AoLE departments across the region. This includes members of Welsh departments in Welsh-

medium and bilingual schools as well as English-medium schools.  There has been considerable interest in the 

project, and discussions with Bangor University/CaBan during Quarter 3 to incorporate the work of Professor Jenny 

Eddy into PGCE courses.  

 

GwE Support Centre    

Work continues with developing the Welsh pages on GwE's Support Centre, and the aim is for this platform to run 

alongside the 'live' Teams and Google Classroom digital platforms, with the former a permanent base and the latter 

a developmental platform.  The newsletter 'O'r Stordy' is also an additional tool for sharing information with leaders 

across the region. Two versions of the newsletter are now shared with schools, one for Welsh-medium and bilingual 

schools and another version for English-medium schools.  

 

SCIENCE 

Realising Curriculum for Wales (CfW) 
Provide professional learning and bespoke support and guidance to schools and settings on the Science and 
Technology AoLE, to help them implement the new curriculum within this area  
Status and Action: 
Bespoke support has been provided to all departments that have requested CfW support.  Members of these 
departments are developing their understanding of the CfW framework in the context of science and technology. 
The schools that have received support, and who are adopting CfW in September 2023, are beginning to plan units 
of work.  
 
Provide regional and local networks for leaders and teachers of Science and Technology AoLE with clear guidance 
on curriculum design, planning, assessment and progression.  
Three Heads of Science Network meetings have taken place representing all 6 local authorities during quarter 3 and 
were well attended and appreciated.  The focus of these networks was planning and design for CfW, looking at 
disciplinary/multi-disciplinary and thematic approaches and bringing the Sciences, Computation and Technology 
together to solve problems. Exemplars and resources produced by the working groups during these meetings have 
been shared and are available for other schools (including non-network schools) to view online bilingually.  
 
Future CfW Network meetings – to include Science, Technology and Computation – will take place in Quarter 4.  The 
focus of these meetings will be Progression, Integral Skills and CWRE.  
 
Support schools and their science departments to ensure development of their understanding of the elements of 
the curriculum for Wales including application and development of the cross-curricular skills, the integral skills, 
and cross-cutting themes within science. 
The Science and Technology AoLE website has been developed – the website is supporting schools and departments 
to consider big ideas/themes in Science and Technology and different methods of planning for learning. The website 
has been shared with all schools and are currently developing exemplars of a thematic approach to integrating cross 
curricular and integral skills. The website will be developed further over Quarter 4, to share examples and good 
practice from schools as they become available.  
 Page 39



Over quarter 3, GwE continues to work with MAGNOX NDA to develop Educational Business Engagement (EBE) 
opportunities for schools as part of the development of CWRE (careers and work-related experiences) as a cross 
cutting theme in the CfW. Termly visits to Wylfa and Half-termly visits to Trawsfynydd have been established. School 
visits will continue to these facilities over Quarter 4. A programme of MAGNOX STEM ambassadors visits to schools 
is currently being planned.  
 
Assessment and Accountability  
Support schools and their science departments to develop their understanding of progression and assessment  
Support schools and leaders of science to evaluate and enhance their provision for the Curriculum for Wales 
(supporting QA processes) 
Supporting resources available on the Science and Technology website have enabled teachers to further develop 
their understanding of progression in learning and the role of the descriptions of learning in planning for learning. 
In Q4, we intend to develop this further via Heads of Science, Technology Network meetings and website 
development.   
 
Improve Teaching   
Collaboration and school- to- school working and sharing of best practice is being developed through the Science 
and Technology AOLE network meetings. Schools involved have gained valuable experience and understanding 
through working together and sharing ideas for planning for learning and pedagogical considerations. This work is 
being shared on the Hwb one-drive.  Quarter 4 will see the continued development of the Technology (WMS 2) 
teacher-expert network, and the establishing of a similar network for Computational Thinking (WMS 6). 
 
Developing the TANIO website – following further quality assurance processes, PowerPoints and other resources 
are being converted into HTMLs for faster, smoother access on the website and mobile devices.  Separate Science 
GCSE resources will be developed following feedback from the Science and Technology Autumn term network 
meetings.  Additional requests from the Science and Technology Autumn term network meetings for exemplar 
bilingual ‘walking-talking’ mocks on the Tanio website – and this will be followed up in Q4.  Bilingual flashcards to 
improve AO1 Science recall will become available to students during Quarter 4.  The website has recorded a 
significant number of hits and downloads over the examination period, demonstrating that the resources are being 
widely used across Wales.  
 
Schools causing concern   
Following requests from SIAs, bespoke and targeted support continues for schools causing concern.  
 
Supporting Leadership 
School visits continue to support Middle Leaders with self-evaluation, identifying priorities for improvement, 
evaluating the quality of provision and teaching and learning.  
 

AGES 3-8 

Provide bespoke support for schools causing concern, enabling them to drive their own improvement journey  
Further enhance the provision and pupil progress across all regional schools in preparation and implementation 
of Curriculum for Wales.  
Ensure good or better use of formative assessment strategies in all schools   
Develop cross sector collaboration and sharing good assessment practice    
Develop cross sector collaboration on transition and the sharing of good practice  
Ensure consistency of messages for schools regarding curriculum, assessment, teaching and learning across cross 
sector networks, training and support provided by GwE 
 
Bespoke support has been delivered to schools causing concern across the region. Nearly all schools causing concern 
are making steady progress against agreed actions and all staff and stakeholders upskilled during the process.        
Support is developing practitioners’ understanding of progression across the developmental pathways of Enabling 
Learning to the end of PS2 in all AOLEs and cross curricular skills. Support also improves their understanding of 
Foundation Learning principles and pedagogy impacting positively on the quality of provision and upon pupils’        
progress.   
 
Regional 3-8 network has been delivered for practitioners and SIAs sharing guidance on Enabling Learning (the         

period of learning leading to Progression step 1) and case studies shared by schools from each LA involved in GwEs Page 40



informed research project ‘Communication Friendly Spaces Approach’.  Practitioners discussed how they had            

reflected and reviewed their learning environment both indoors and outdoors and the impact of their provision on 

learners in line with Enabling Learning guidance. Presentations and case studies have been uploaded on to the GwE 

Support Centre enabling all school regionally to access them.  

Regional workshops have been delivered regionally for teachers and TAs new to the 3-8 age group focusing on the 

principles of Enabling Learning and AOLEs within this age group and effective pedagogy. Those who attended have 

a secure knowledge and understanding of the three enablers within Enabling Learning, pedagogy and the curriculum 

to transfer into classroom practice. 

Regional digital workshop co-delivered on developing skills within 3-8 age group (see Digital Business Plan report). 

Bespoke support has been delivered to individual schools and clusters on specific aspects of the Curriculum e.g., 

early reading and higher order reading skills and outdoor learning. This has upskilled staff on the 3-11 continuum 

regarding expanding and deepening skills within a developmentally appropriate learning experiences and                    

environment. 

Joint practitioner and SIA delivery of cluster woodwork workshops were held exemplifying impact of Woodwork 

provision on the development of skills across AOLE’s, cross-curricular skills and integral skills. Case studies shared 

demonstrated effective methods of observation and assessment through real life authentic experiences which        

positively impacted pupil’s overall progress and well-being.   

 

OBJECTIVE 3 - LEADERSHIP 

Supporting inspirational leaders working collaboratively to raise standards. Includes future leadership & 
professional networks 

LEADERSHIP 

Provide access to a range of regional and national professional learning, including access to coaching and 
mentoring, for all educational practitioners in schools and settings that is appropriate to their role and 
responsibility in line with professional standard. 
 
National Professional Learning, National leadership Programmes for Teachers/Headteachers) 
The 2021-22 cohorts have completed their development programmes. The team have recruited healthy numbers 
of appropriately experienced applicants from across the region for the 2022-23 cohorts.   
 
Informal monitoring and evaluation based on delivery team discussions, indicate that all programmes continue to 
have a positive effect on leaders’ confidence and ability to contribute to a self-improving and collaborative system.  
Discussions with participants, their line managers and SIAs following the leadership experience task (LET)        
presentations indicate that the programmes are consistently contributing to the development of self-reflecting 
practitioners. They are taking greater responsibility for their own professional learning, career development and 
are further developing their understanding of their leadership role, particularly with regard to the successful im-
plementation of CfW.   
 
A representative from the Middle Leadership Development Programme (MLDP) and Senior Leader Development 
Programme (SLDP) presented their LET and discussed the impact of the programme on their professional                  
development in a successful GwE Estyn visit during November. 
 
The programmes are continuing to ensure that delegates across all programmes reflect successfully on their own 
professional practice as school leaders against the National Leadership Standards.  Participants have been upskilled 
and empowered to lead and support colleagues in their settings, strengthening the leadership capacity in their 
schools.  The Leadership Pathway facilitates appropriate professional learning for leaders at all levels, supporting 
their development to the next stage of their career. 
 
Both the MLDP and SLDP programmes have been updated accordingly to reflect the national agenda.  This has 
happened on a national level. On a regional level, Module 1 from both MLDP and SLDP has been adapted so that Page 41



it can be delivered face to face.  With regard to the changes to the New and Acting Headteacher Programme, the 
induction provision for new Headteachers from across the region is now more consistent, supportive and effective.  
Those that have demonstrated the necessary evidence, knowledge and experience of whole school leadership 
have been endorsed following completion of the Aspiring Headteacher Development Programme (AHDP). They 
will now move onto the next stage in readying evidence for headship in the NPQH Assessment Centre in February 
2023. 
 

GOVERNORS 

Support school governing bodies in making good appointments at senior level.  
Support local authorities in ensuring that governing bodies have access to high quality learning opportunities.  
Support local authorities in ensuring that governing bodies have support in self-evaluation and development 
planning.  
Facilitate effective communication and information-sharing between GwE, LA and GSO.  
Support LA’s in their provision of training for governing bodies in their support of school improvement. 
 
Support has been provided for local authorities to ensure that governing bodies have access to high quality        
learning opportunities. The 2021 – 2022 programme of  professional learning opportunities has been updated for 
2022 – 2023 and shared with the GwE team and the six Governor Support officers.  The offer has been extended 
to include the 2022 School Improvement Guidance.  It also includes Support for schools requiring improvement,      
Curriculum For Wales, Schools as Learning Organisations, Teaching and Learning, Digital Competency, Cymraeg, 
Skills Challenge and Leadership.  
 
Support has been provided for local authorities to ensure that governing bodies have support in self-evaluation 
and development planning, including pre-inspection support for Governors on Estyn's expectations prior to and 
during inspection.  

 

Support has been provided to facilitate effective communication and information-sharing between GwE, LA and 
GSO.  All stakeholders benefit from shared information.  
 

ALLIANCES / NETWORKS / CLUSTERS 

Collaborate with school leaders at all levels to further embed the contribution of:  
• primary/secondary clusters  
• secondary alliances  
• regional networks  
in addressing national and regional priorities 
 
To ensure that governing bodies are aware of the importance of alliance/cluster collaboration particularly as it 
relates to CfW development 
One of the key strands of the recently published School-Improvement Guidance: Framework for Evaluation, 
Improvement and Accountability gives new impetus to the collaborative work undertaken with school leaders at 
all levels to embed the contribution of primary/secondary clusters and secondary alliances. In moving forward, the 
national expectation that schools effectively engage with peers and specifically around evaluation, improvement 
planning and developing a consistent approach and understanding of learner progress will support our efforts and 
ensure greater traction and impact in the cultural shift. 
 
EDT/SPP training has continued, introducing new clusters/alliances to the model and offering a refresher for those 
who wanted to re-engage post Covid. 
 
Almost all schools across all sectors have engaged effectively with local alliances and clusters. To date, the focus 
has been primarily on CfW cluster collaboration and on contributing to evaluation and improvement planning 
activities. Their work has been augmented by the contributions of the AoLE, Assessment and Curriculum Design 
Networks at regional and local levels. As a result, a number of alliances are developing strong emerging practice 
around planning collaborative activities to support the reform journey and aspects of school improvement, and 
primary clusters have been able to work on developing cluster priorities around CfW for their SDP. In addition, 
leaders are demonstrating an increased level of confidence with curriculum roll-out.  
 
From Spring 2023, the main thrust for primary/secondary clusters has been on: Page 42



 further promoting effective collaboration to meet the requirements of the SIF.  

 ensuring quality Professional Development e.g., activities to share successful practice within and beyond 
the cluster. 

 further strengthening the quality of leadership across the school and cluster. 

 supporting leaders and teachers to implement the new curriculum.  

 Y Gymraeg 

 further strengthening the quality of teaching and learning and assessment across the school 

 ensuring continuity in primary-secondary transition for teaching and learning  

 developing the skills of leaders and further enhance processes and systems for effective self-evaluation, 
improvement planning and measuring impact.   

 promoting learner skills and well-being 
 
All alliances and clusters are working with their Link SIAs to develop action plans which will capture how funding 
is being deployed to support progress against identified key areas above. 
 

 

OBJECTIVE 4 - STRONG & INCLUSIVE SCHOOLS 

Committed to excellence, equity & well-being 

To further develop & implement the national PDG strategy across the region. 
Embed the PDG LAC cluster/alliance model across the region 

The GwE PDG support plan for 2022-2023 has been submitted to Welsh Government focusing on the following 

areas: Pupils Eligible for Free School Meals, Looked After Children, Early Years Pupil Development Grant and Pupils 

Eligible for free school meals who are educated in PRUs and EOTAS. 

GwE have two Health and Wellbeing Supporting Improvement Advisers and Joint Leads for PDG and LAC PDG.  The 
Supporting Improvement Advisers also work with their link schools to ensure that all schools understand and 
undertake their duties, with a particular focus on preparing for the Health and Well-being Area of Learning and 
Experience in Curriculum for Wales.   
 
GwE has developed an overall PDG framework model that is been implemented in schools/LAs across the region. 
The focus has been on supporting targeted schools within specific LAs to raise the standards of FSM learners and 
ensuring a strategic steer to supporting SIAs to implement evidence-based interventions. 
 
Our focus for 2022/23 is to ensure all clusters / SEN schools /PRUs receive the PDG LAC funds with focus 
on supporting effective teaching & learning, emotional health and wellbeing, Professional Learning in regard to a 
whole school approach to trauma informed practice and in addition targeted support in line with the PEP. 
 
We will continue to work closely with the 6 LAs to ensure clear communication and collaboration in regard to 
additional support and interventions with the LAC PDG and that all cluster plans are approved by both GwE and 
the LA. 

 

WORKFORCE WELL-BEING (GwE and schools) 

Support leaders’ well-being with the ongoing challenges linked with leadership, through providing ‘Reflective 
Spaces’ to school leaders across the region. 
‘Reflective Spaces’ continue to have a positive impact across the region.  Mike Armiger and Coral Harper are 
running at full capacity.  GwE have had recent conversations with an organisation called Student Breakthrough to 
explore coaching for young people. They are delivering a train the trainer model so adults have an accreditation 
to coach with young people, using a 4I System: Instruct, Inspire, Impact and Instigate.  A Student Breakthrough 
pilot will start with 5 Special Schools in January 2023.  
 

WHOLE SCHOOL WELL-BEING (AoLE) 

Promoting ‘Ethically Informed Citizens of Wales’ by building on the momentum of our successful TEDxGwE.     
Planning is in progress for us to work in collaboration with Glyndwr University and the North Wales Public Service 
Boards to run a ‘Future Leaders Pilot’ to enable young people (aged 14-16) to directly contribute to the Page 43



development of regional Well-being Plans, sharing their views and ideas on how well-being can actively be 
improved for them and people like them in their local area.  This is linked to the Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015, building an increased understanding, developing 'global and ethical informed citizens' and building a sense 
of self-efficacy and potential as future (and current) leaders.   
 
The intention is to hold TEDxGWE in the Summer Term 2023 across each LA – planning meeting to take place.   
 
GwE have attended a One World, International, launch event on the 19/11/2022 to promote the 100 school 
Challenge and also a TAITH event, again to promote the 100 School challenge.  A request has gone to One World 
for an update on the number of schools signed up in the region.   
 

STRATEGY TO SUPPORT PARENTS / CARERS 

Ensure effective implementation of the roll out of “Help your Child to Learn” to schools, parents and carers 
across Wales 
A regional group has been established with representation from GwE and each LA to lead, manage and co-ordinate 
the field of supporting parents and carers with their child’s learning.   

 
The main developments are as follows:    

 The Research developer has created Help Your Child to Learn (HYTTL) Primary and Years 7 & 8.  

 The Research developer has created Help Your Teen to Learn (HYTTL) for year 9, 10 & 11.   

 Bilingual Communication packs for HYCTL and HYTTL have been shared with schools.  

 Training packages for TAs to use with parents (HYCTL & HYTTL) have been developed. 

 A platform was created on the GwE website with information for Parents, Carers & Schools – this 
ensures easy access for all. 

 12 Schools to pilot the training package for Help your Child to learn.  The group will reconvene in the 
autumn term with feedback.  The training will then be available for all schools across the region. 

 Secondary colleagues to be invited to attend training in the Autumn term.  The aim is to do this with 
all secondary schools across the region. 

   
Drop-in session have been held for participating schools.  Also feedback session were arranged for participating 
schools with additional sessions timetabled for the other schools.  Schools feedback gave a very positive view from 
the parents who liked the Resource.  They adapted the presentation and the content to suit their context.  Parents 
know the Resource can be used flexibly and have asked if an app could be made available – this will be explored 
with the Resource creator.  A session has been arranged to meet with a small number of schools to develop the 
family learning pack. 
 

REIGNITE LEARNING 

High Frequency Word/Repeated Reading (HFW/RR) & Headsprout Implementation Support 

This work stream consists of two aspects: Improving fluency in Oral Reading (iFOR) using HFW and RR strategies, 

and the continued provision for schools to use Headsproout reading programmes, known as the Keeping Pupils 

Reading (KPR) project. Both projects are continuation of work started in the previous year. Updates are as follows: 

 

Improving fluency in Oral Reading (iFOR) 

52 schools and 66 teachers have signed up and had access to online training videos, and intervention resources to 

download for use in their schools. The number of teachers that have accessed the Google classroom is as follows:  

 63 have accessed the English resources  

 41 have accessed the Welsh resources.  
 

Fourteen schools have attended follow-up Q&A support sessions online and have had access to a member of the 

research team for implementation support. The support sessions took place in September 2021 and January 2022. 

Schools have also been invited to measure progress in Oral Reading Fluency using the DIBELS screening test. Two 

schools have measured progress using DIBELS pre-post screening resources and one school is monitoring progress. 

Another six schools expressed interest in measuring pupil progress using DIBELS. The Repeated Reading fluency 

materials have been further developed for use at home and in school (additional practice opportunities). Schools 

have been invited to trial the use of the materials at home and in school. Four schools have expressed interest. Page 44



Throughout 2021-22, we have continued to update the Repeated Reading and High Frequency Word interventions 

to make them more accessible and usable. We are also in the process of designing an iFOR manual and creating 

simple short training videos.  

 

Adverts have been placed on the GwE Bulletin in September 2022 for schools to sign up to the November 2022 

iFOR training sessions. The Repeated Reading intervention resources have been updated to make them more 

accessible and usable. We now have a Repeated Reading pdf manual, with a series of accompanying short and 

simple training videos. Following the GwE Bulletin in September 2022, 28 schools and 32 teachers signed up to 

access the reading fluency interventions (Repeated Reading and High Frequency Word interventions).  

 

Twenty-three teachers signed up to attend a training session in November 2022. In addition, we have gained 

ethical approval for, and planned, a randomised controlled trial to measure the impact of the Repeated Reading 

fluency intervention on pupils reading rate, accuracy and comprehension. Eight schools have expressed interest 

in participating in the study, which we plan to conduct throughout 2023.  

 
Keeping Pupils Reading (KPR) 
Summary of ongoing progress as follows: 

 On-going school support via email/phone call/video call from Research Officer available for any support 
required by school staff (technical, buying/renewing licences, implementation, training, how to access 
resources etc) 

 All resources including how to guides and training videos as of September 2021 are accessible via Hwb 
for school staff and Google Classroom for parents 

 All project details were advertised via the GwE bulletin and via twitter 

 Autumn Term 2021 all schools were supported with renewing their current licences or trial licences.  

 Spring Term 2022 - delivered two getting started with Headsprout webinars and 2 How to monitor         
progress webinars (these were recorded and made accessible on the GwE support centre. 10 schools 
attended and have continued to have on-going support since. 

 Summer Term 2022 - delivered 3 Q and A sessions for schools. 2 schools attended. 
 

Next steps actions completed autumn term 2022: 

- Continued support offered to school staff from the Research Officer 
- Monitor Hwb to allow access to new schools  
- Continue to monitor Google Classroom 
- Update training videos when required 

 
Adverts were placed in October 2022 Bulletin for schools to sign up to the November KPR webinar sessions. There 

were two webinars available to school staff: 

 Webinar 1: Getting started with Headsprout; and  

 Webinar 2: Progress monitoring when using Headsprout.  
 

Webinars and resources were updated to fit the changes with the Headsprout programme and how schools can 

fit in the provision to fit the new ALN policy.  Eight schools and 16 teachers signed up to access Webinar 1 and 1 

school and 1 teacher signed up to access Webinar 2.  

All attendees of this years and last year’s webinar sessions are being offered on-going support in the form of check-

in emails and online meetings as and when required to ensure they receive the support their setting needs 

throughout the year. The support is also open to all schools who continue to use Headsprout or have an interest 

in beginning to use Headsprout throughout the year. The support is for getting started with the programme 

including correspondence with Headsprout, implementation support, progress monitoring and helping to solve 

technical difficulties. 

 
Remote Instruction of Language and Literacy (RILL) – Phase 2 

The RILL research team commenced Phase 2 work at the start of May 2021. They have now completed the 

adaptations to the original asynchronous/synchronous version of RILL initially developed in 2020 during lockdown. 
Page 45



Thirty-three schools have been trained in RILL (58 teachers) during the 2021-22 school year, with the majority 

being Welsh medium. 

 

During 2021-22 RILL focused on training new schools to implement the programme. Training consisted of 

asynchronous tasks, a live full-day training session with the RILL team (max 5 teachers per online session), and a 

short follow-up discussion. Weekly drop-in sessions were also available to those who required further and 

continuous support. We also conducted some in person training within participating schools. 

 

In addition to a Hwb network where teachers can access information and training materials, ask questions, and 

reflect on their experience, a new website has been created that includes information and support materials for 

schools, teachers, and parents. The website also contains materials for parents to use with children at home – 

including two new vocabulary words, a story, and discussion points to encourage interaction and the use of oral 

language. These materials complement the Welsh medium RILL materials and are intended to be set as homework 

by the teacher prior to the lesson. For non-Welsh speaking parents, English descriptions/translations are included, 

as well as videos to support low confident readers.  

 

We have also developed and piloted a battery of online assessments to capture impact data for RILL.  In 2022-23, 

the first objective is to expand RILL to provide a 15-week tech-based language and literacy Welsh programme to 

disadvantaged children (i.e., non-Welsh-at-home, low SES and ability) and to test its effectiveness in improving 

Welsh language and reading skills.  We have begun to successfully recruit 20 schools to commence this work in 

October 2022. We will also be recruiting a further 60 schools from across Wales to receive RILL training in the 

spring term 2023.  

 
To help target schools use an evidence-informed study and revision strategies 
This project is aimed at gathering feedback and information on the feasibility of using a new set of practice testing 
(iStER) resources to help learners improve GCSE mathematics outcomes. We will commence work this term and 
further training for learners is scheduled for March 2023.  
 

 

OBJECTIVE 5 - SUPPORTING A SELF-IMPROVING SYSTEM 

Supporting a system in which the education profession has the skills, capacity and agency to continually learn 
and improve practice 

PEER ENGAGEMENT 

Continue to further develop peer review processes in schools to support robust self-evaluation actions and  
improvement planning on all levels.  
Continue to develop leadership capacity across the system.                                                                                       

Embed peer review as a key aspect of school improvement across the region.  

 

For the last four years there has been agreement with Headteachers on a series of regional principles for peer 
engagement.  A model of peer review and improvement planning was agreed (the Schools Partnership Programme 
[SPP]) for stakeholders, approved by the Management Board and Joint Committee.    
 
All GwE SIAs have received continuous training and support on peer review, facilitation, mentoring and coaching.  

By December 2022, 29 SIAs have been trained as peer reviewers and improvement facilitators as part of the SPP. 

All new staff members have received SPP refresher training.   

During October 2021, 13 SIAs were trained to deliver the programme, and following a programme of observing 

training during April 2022 the first SPP training programme entirely facilitated by GwE staff was delivered to cohort 

3b during May 2022.  By December 2022, 10 additional SIAs have received training to deliver the programme. This 

means that 33 SIAs can now deliver the SPP programme successfully.   Following this increased capacity to deliver 

the programme, initial training was delivered to 90 schools in cohort 3C by a team of GwE facilitators.  

By December 2022, 37 clusters/alliances (206 schools) have received SPP training, and they have already Page 46



undertaken peer review, or are preparing to undertake peer review during the autumn term 2022.  266 
Headteachers / senior leaders have been trained as peer reviewers across the region.  226 senior leaders / middle 
leaders and proficient teachers have been trained as 'improvement facilitators’. This enabled leaders and teachers 
to benefit from professional education of a high standard and it will contribute to improving leadership capacity 
across the region.  By December 2022 both the first and second tier of primary schools and clusters involved in the 
programme have received extended improvement facilitator training, with the focus on developing increasing and 
effective use of research in their improvement workshops. In addition, opportunities were provided across the 
region in December 2022 for schools and partnerships to scale up their capacity to implement the programme by 
training additional improvement facilitators.     
 
The main objective of the scheme is to offer SPP training to all 407 regional schools and the Referral Units. The 
intention is to train approximately 15 clusters every term during the 2021-22 academic year, and in 2022-23.  The 
Programme will be aligned to developing a new curriculum, to support schools and clusters evaluate their progress 
towards the reform journey.  To this end a series of reflection questions with a focus on the reform journey have 
been created in alignment with the peer process, and schools receiving the training are signposted to the 
curriculum prompts that are part of the National Resource for Evaluation and Improvement.   

 
In September 2021, schools and clusters not already involved in the programme were asked to express an interest 
in participating in SPP training.  A total of 33 clusters across the region expressed an interest, which included 193 
regional schools.  Therefore, by the end of December 2022, half of the region's schools have received initial training 
and are starting, or have started, their peer review and improvement planning work.  
 
Four clusters / alliances have been identified to be included in a case study on research into the impact of the 
programme in 2022-23.  A researcher from the Education Development Trust will complete this work on behalf of 
the region.    

 

COACHING AND MENTORING 

Provide access to a range of professional learning regionally and nationally, including access to coaching and 
mentoring for all education practitioners in schools and settings, which is appropriate for their role and  
responsibilities, in line with professional standards.  
The National Mentoring Programme has been delivered through the medium of both Welsh and English, and dates 
have been identified for the programme to be delivered again during the spring term.   Information on the level 3 
qualification has been shared following the National sessions, and information about level 5 and 7 qualifications 
has been shared with schools and GwE staff.  
 
Supervision Sessions and an invitation to the Good Practice Group have been shared, and Reflective Spaces  
sessions shared with schools and GwE staff.  
 

SCHOOLS CAUSING CONCERN 

Continue to collaborate with Welsh Government, Estyn and the relevant regional LAs on the national  
multi-agency pilot for secondary schools in Special Measures and on Stage 3 support for those schools recently 
taken out of category. 
In collaboration with LA Officers, further strengthen regional structures and processes to support and challenge 
primary and secondary SCC. 
Planning and delivering the new curriculum for Wales. 
 
Collaboration with Welsh Government, Estyn and the regional LAs are continuing the national multi-agency 
approach for secondary schools in Special Measures and on Stage 3 support for those schools recently taken out 
of category. Collaboration with LA Officers is also continuing to further strengthen and ensure a higher level of 
consistency in regional structures and processes to support and challenge primary and secondary SCC.  
 
Currently there are 4 secondary schools in Special Measures. It is not anticipated that any of the 4 schools will be 
removed from category during this educational year.  
 
Work is continuing with Stage 3 ‘sustainable exit’ support for the school recently taken out of statutory category. 
 
2022-23 bespoke ‘holistic’ support plans for all the schools noted above are operational. Progress is monitored via Page 47



the work of local MAG and Quality Board Groups Plans also ensure that all schools are effectively engaging with 
key partners as they plan and deliver their new curriculum and ensure increasing engagement with alliance/cluster 
and wider networking for improving leadership, provision and the quality of teaching and learning. 
 

SCHOOLS AND SERVICE AS LEARNING ORGANISATIONS (SLO) 

Ensure GwE and its workforce continue to respond to all the requirements and values of Learning Organisations.  
Raising awareness of schools and authorities of the importance of Schools as Learning Organisations (SLO) needs 
to be scaled up. Regional schools have made great strides in developing the 4 transversal themes of Time, 
Technology, Trust and Thinking Together during Covid, and this has provided a strong foundation for schools to 
continue developing their collaboration and communication methods.  
 
The SLO culture is clear in the majority of schools, although perhaps they are not using the vocabulary of the 7 
dimensions. Where SLO culture is at its best it occurs naturally in schools, without if feeling like an additional 
burden.  The School Improvement Framework and its priorities has also helped to set a clear direction for schools 
in terms of the need to work together for the benefit of pupils and catchment areas.   
 
Help schools across the region to gain a deeper understanding of what constitutes a Learning Organisation, so 
that it is a natural part of the culture of schools.   
An understanding of what constitutes a SLO has developed in many schools, but lockdown has meant that some 
schools, especially where there has been a change in leadership, need a refresher on the importance of this work, 
so that the culture is known to all school stakeholders. In the best practice, the authority has held refresher training 
for all its schools and provided guidance in this area for Governors. There is some work to be done to update 
schools on SLO, and it is intended to do this through a series of optional workshops across the region.  
 
Further strengthen our partnership with HEIs and develop students' awareness of SLO.  
Further development work needs to be done with our HEI partners to look at Schools as Learning Organisations 
and ensure that our students have a deeper understanding of SLO and their values.  
 

 

OBJECTIVE  6 – BUSINESS  

Ensure that GwE has strong governance and effective business and operational support that provides value for 
money. 

Information sharing systems   

A dashboard with KS4 and KS5 examination results was shared last term.  It is intended to develop and release 

dashboards for KS4 indicators and regional schools' PLASC data during the term, which will enable staff to harness 

the required information quickly.  

 
Performance Management and Accountability   
The clear and robust accountability framework in a key strength in GwE. Detailed business plans on all levels of 
planning address all aspects of the work of GwE, and clearly note the contribution of the service to the 
transformation agenda. Plans are fully costed, with clear success criteria and milestones for delivering objectives.  
There are detailed self-evaluation arrangements. Plans are reviewed on a quarterly basis, evaluating progress and 
impact. Staff on all levels fully understand their responsibility for continued improvement and accountability.     
 
Each Local Authority has a detailed business plan agreed upon by the head of service and the core adviser. Progress 
towards agreed outcomes on a local authority level is monitored on a quarterly basis and discussed regularly in 
meetings between the lead adviser and Local Authority. Ongoing issues are referred to GwE Senior leaders in a 
timely manner.  
 
Self-evaluation is a strong feature in GwE and the self-evaluation process is cyclical and ongoing. Great emphasis 
is placed on accountability and continuous review, and there is consistent emphasis on progress in line with 
priorities. Consequently, GwE leaders accurately identify areas of good performance and areas for development, 
or areas where there is an element of risk in terms of improving experiences and educational outcomes for 
learners.  Page 48



 
Value for Money  
The consortium has effective financial management processes in place. Communication and consultation on 
financial arrangements is effective, and GwE staff, the host local authority and Joint Committee all review the core 
funding and grant expenditure on a regular basis.     
 
A robust financial analysis supports the work of delivering the business plan.  Through increasingly effective use of 
data to identify key priorities, the link between the business planning process and decisions regarding financial 
planning is strengthened as the work streams that underpin the business plan clearly note the resources to be 
used.  
 
A formal framework was produced to assess the wider value for money provided by GwE. The judgement is now 
consistent across all stakeholders on how to measure the value for money of GwE activities within the structure 
and objectives of the business plan.   
 
Risk Register  
There are rigorous and comprehensive arrangements in place to accurately identify and manage risks on a local, 
regional and national level. The risk register is a live document, which is updated on a regular basis to identify 
increasing risks or risks which are no longer deemed as high level.  
 
Through effective management of risks to the region, GwE is able to support the region’s objectives, make effective 
use of resources and meet the outcomes as intended.   

 

 

2. APPENDIX:  
 

Regional Data    

Page 49



 

 www.gwegogledd.cymru  @GwEGogleddCymru 

 

 

  

GwE  Business Plan 

2022-2023 

Regional and LA 

Data 

Quarter 3 

Page 50



 

2022-2023 BUSINESS PLAN 

REGIONAL PRIORITIES & PROVISION 2022-2023 
 

Regional and Local Authority Data 
 

OBJECTIVE 1 - CURRICULUM & ASSESSMENT  

Supporting a national curriculum with equity & excellence at its core that sets high standards for all learners 

EDUCATION CONTINUUM 3 to 16 

Regional data:   
 
Pedagogy transition project:  

 12 Clusters  
 

Autumn Term 3-8 Network:  

 343 attended regionally  
 
Workshop for Teachers and TAs new to the 3-8age group:  

 135 attended regionally 
 
Attendance figures for GwE regional Transition workshop:   

 147 attended regionally 
 

CURRICULUM REALISATION (CURRICULUM FOR WALES) 

Regional data:   
 

Numbers attending the national CfW Professional Learning sessions online: 

 327 in total across Wales 

 144 from GwE  

 
AOLE TEAMS 

Regional data:   
 
Increased number of website hits accessing greater number of materials and examples shared by networks & 
schools: 
 
Between 1/9/21 and 23/3/22 

 2845 CfW GwE Support Centre  

 2674 CiG Canolfan Cefnogaeth GwE 
 

Between 1/9/21 and 18/7/22 

 6587 CfW GwE Support Centre 

 6429 CiG Canolfan Cefnogaeth GwE 
 

Between 1/9/21 and 10/10/22 

 7358 CfW GwE Support Centre 

 7239 CiG Canolfan Cefnogaeth GwE 
 

Between 1/9/21 and 20/1/23 

 8418 CfW GwE Support Centre 

 8100 CiG Canolfan Cefnogaeth GwE  
 

Page 51



 

OBJECTIVE 2- DEVELOPING A HIGH-QUALITY EDUCATION PROFESSION 

 Improving the teaching & learning in our schools 

MODERN FOREIGN LANGUAGES 

Regional data:   
 
Power Language: 

 2-year subscription:  123 
 
Upskilling primary:  

 Number of schools attending: 7 (9 teachers) 
 
Power language Training primary  

 Number of schools attending: 30 (31 teachers) 
 
Cerdd Iaith German:  

 Number of schools :3 
 
OU 2022-2023   

 Number of schools: 13 (14 teachers) 
 

Year 8/9 Mentoring 

 Number of schools: 25  
 
Designing for languages programme 

 Number of schools registered: 26  

 Number of attendees: 33 
 
Creating across Languages project 2022-2023 

 Number of schools involved and interested:  3 
 
Network Meeting Secondary - November 2022  

 Number of schools: 29 
 
Let’s take Languages: Uni day for year8/9 (10.11.22) 

 Number of schools interested to date:  9 

 154 pupils 
 
Let’s take Languages: Uni day for year 8/9 (31.01.2023) 

 Number of schools registered: 8 

 130 pupils 
 
Let’s take Languages: Uni day for year 8/9 (1.2.23) 

 Number of schools registered:  8 

 130 pupils 
 

Let’s take Languages: Uni day for year8/9 
Total data 2022-2023  

 Number of schools:  25 

 410 pupils 
 
 
 
 Page 52



HLTA - TALP 

Regional data: 
 
Newly appointed teaching assistants:  

 40 
 

Practising teaching assistants:  

 96 
 

 

Cylch 4 Aspiring HLTA:  

 26 
 

Cylch 5 Aspiring HLTA:   

 35 
 
Cylch 6 Aspiring HLTA:  

 25 
 

 

 
Cylch 3 HLTA Status:   

 27 
 

Cylch 4 HLTA Status:   

 11 
 

HLTA Assessors:  

 31 
 

Introduction to Curriculum for Wales:  

 219 
 

Y Gymraeg  (PL) 

Regional Data:    
 
 

GwE attending Headteacher forums:  

 6 
 
Ein Llais Ni 

 Submitted case studies: 65 
 
Access to National Learning Centre courses  

 Total number of learning activities: 54 
 
Numbers continuing with learning activities:  

 23 
 
National Centre for Learning Welsh provision and regional schools’ commitment to the training available:  

 25  
 

A LEVEL 

Regional data:   

Numbers of Post-16 leaders /Heads of Sixth who have attended network meetings/training for middle leaders:  

 21  
 

RESEARCH AND EVALUATION 

Regional data:   

KiVa Anti-Bullying Research Project:   

 30 schools in North Wales have been recruited for the study 
 

ITE 

Regional data:   
 
NQT 
National NQT, EV and IM training programmes: 

 Number of GwE NQT’s having attended:  Session 1:  216 (approx. 72% of this year’s cohort) 

 Number of GwE External Verifiers having attended training:  78 (approx. 92% of the EV’s working in the GwE 
consortium) Page 53



 Number of GwE Induction Mentors having attended Session 1:  62. 
 

MATHS AND NUMERACY 
Regional data:  

 Number of schools Number of visits 

Primary Individual subject school support 4 8 

Secondary Individual school support 19 26 

Heads of Maths network meetings 47 48 (people) 

 
 

ENGLISH AND LITERACY 

Regional data:   
 
Bespoke support to schools: 

 Primary:  25 
 

 Secondary:  49 
 

WELSH AND LITERACY 

Regional Data  
 
Literacy Co-ordinators' Network Meeting: 

 20 (Welsh-medium and bilingual schools) 
 
'On demand' virtual network meetings in collaboration with Qualifications Wales to respond to the 'Have Your 
Say' consultation on the new GCSE Welsh qualifications:   

 13 
 
English-medium schools Support Network:  

 3 
 
‘Ein Llais Ni’ project (GwE)  

 Number of secondary schools involved in the project: 13 
 
‘Ein Llais Ni: Datblygu siaradwyr y dyfodol’ event (Venue Cymru)  

 Secondary schools (Welsh-medium and bilingual) involved in the event as well as secondary schools (Welsh-
medium and bilingual)  attending the event: 10  

 
‘Dylunio ar gyfer Ieithoedd CiG’  project 

 secondary school Welsh Departments involved in the project: 6 
 
Members of ‘GwE - Y Gymraeg - Uwchradd’ Teams/Google Classroom – all Welsh leads are members of this digital 
network and receive a copy of the ‘O’r Stordy’ newsletter:  

 27 
 
Members of ‘GwE - Y Gymraeg – Uwchradd YCS’ Teams / Google Classroom – membership of this digital network 
for English-medium schools continues to grow, and every English-medium school in the region receives a copy of 
the ‘O’r Stordy’ newsletter (version for English-medium schools):  

 19 
 
 
 Page 54



SCIENCE  

Regional data:   
 
Heads of Science Autumn term networks attendance:   

 37 
 
Received bespoke school support:   

 13 
 

AGES 3-8 

Regional data:   
 
School support Regionally:   

No. of schools No. of visits 

55 79 

 
Cluster support (no. of schools):   

 92 
 
Autumn Term 3-8 Network:  

 343 attended regionally  
 
Workshop for Teachers and TAs new to the 3-8age group:  

 135 attended regionally 
 

 

OBJECTIVE 3 - LEADERSHIP 
Supporting inspirational leaders working collaboratively to raise standards. Includes future leadership & 

professional networks 

LEADERSHIP 

Regional data:   
 

  2021-22 

1.Middle Leadership Development Programme  102 

2.Senior Leaders Development Programme  72 

3.Aspiring Headteacher Development Programme (preparing for NPQH  35 

4.New and Acting Headteacher Development Programme  32 

5.Experienced Headteacher Development Programme  17 

TOTAL  258 

 
 
Numbers following Leadership Programmes 

Programme 2021-22 2022-23 Differential 

MLDP 74 86 +14% 

RhDAG 29 41 +30% 

Page 55



SLDP 44 74 +40% 

RhDUA 27 30 +10% 

Total 174 231 +25% 

 
Rhaglen / Programme 2021-22 2022-23 

RhDDB (CPCP) / AHT (NPQH) 35 *35 applicant 

Penaethiaid Newydd a Mewn gofal / 

New and Acting Headteachers / 

15 30 

Penaethiaid Profiadol / Experienced 

Headteachers  

17 6 

 
 

GOVERNORS 

Regional data:  
 
GwE was represented at the regional and National Association of Directors of Education in Wales (ADEW) 
Governors Support Officers (GSO) meetings: 

 GSO ADEW group meeting 08/06/22 

 GSO North Wales meeting 16/06/22 – GwE updates were shared  

 GSO North Wales meeting 29/09/22 – GwE updates were shared  

 GSO ADEW group meeting 29/09/22 - GwE updates were shared  

 GSO ADEW group meeting 10/10/22 
 

 

OBJECTIVE 4 - STRONG & INCLUSIVE SCHOOLS 

Committed to excellence, equity & well-being 

RE-IGNITE LEARNING 

Regional data:  
 
Improving fluency in Oral Reading (iFOR) 

 52 schools and 66 teachers have signed up and had access to online training videos. 

The number of teachers that have accessed the Google classroom is as follows:  

• 63 have accessed the English resources  

• 41 have accessed the Welsh resources.  

iFOR training sessions 

 28 schools and 32 teachers signed up to access the reading fluency interventions (Repeated Reading and 
High Frequency Word interventions).  
 

Keeping Pupils Reading (KPR) 

 The total number of GwE schools engaged:  45 
 
Keeping Pupils Reading (KPR) 
A breakdown of the numbers of teachers, parents and online resource views is as follows: 

 07/2021 07/2022 

Page 56



Number of schools who have renewed licence(s) directly with SR since 

September 2021 

30 15 

Number of pupils joined Google Classroom 40 40 

Number of staff joined Hwb 71 73 

Video Guide views: Headsprout at home (Parents and staff) 399 513 

Video Guide views: How to use Headsprout stories (Parents) 106 363 

Video Guide views: How to conduct Benchmarks (Parents) 18 46 

Video Guide views: How to conduct Fluency Building (Parents) 13 54 

Video Guide views: How to set up a free trial/buy or renew a licence 

(School Staff) 

65 77 

Video Guide views: How to add pupils to the programme (School Staff) 84 135 

Video Guide views: How to check scores (School Staff) 39 85 

Video Guide views: How to input Benchmark scores (School Staff) 16 25 

Video guide views: How to access Google Classroom (Parents) 33 50 

Webinar 1 Getting started with Headsprout - 2 

Webinar 2 Progress monitoring when using Headsprout - 0 

 
KPR webinar sessions: 

 No. who attended:  9 
 

 
Remote Instruction of Language and Literacy (RILL) – Phase 2 

 Thirty-three schools have been trained in RILL (58 teachers) during the 2021-22 school year, with the 
majority being Welsh medium:    

 

STRATEGY TO SUPPORT PARENTS / CARERS 

Regional data:   
 
Help Your Child to Learn  

 342 registered users 
 

Help Your Teen to Learn  

 421 registered users 
 

 

OBJECTIVE 5 - SUPPORTING A SELF-IMPROVING SYSTEM 
Supporting a system in which the education profession has the skills, capacity and agency to continually learn 

& improve their practice 

PEER ENGAGEMENT 

Regional Data:    
 
Number of schools/clusters/alliances involved in the programme:  

 206 / 37 
 Page 57



Number of trained Peer Reviewers: 

 266 
 

Number of trained Improvement Facilitators 

 226 
 

SCHOOLS CAUSING CONCERN  

Regional data:   
 
Secondary schools in Special Measures:  

 4  
 
Secondary schools in Significant Improvement:  

 0 
 
Primary schools in Special Measures:  

 1 
 
Primary schools in Significant Improvement:  

 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 58



GwE: Joint Committee - 15/02/2022 

 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE  

15 FEBRUARY 2022   

 

Report by:   Arwyn Thomas - GwE Managing Director  

Subject:    Written Statement: School improvement and the information landscape 

                              Minister for Education and Welsh Language 

 

 

1.0 Purpose of the Report  
To present information to Joint Committee members regarding a Written Statement by the 
Minister for Education and Welsh Language.   

 
2.0  Background  
2.1  In June 2022, school improvement guidance was published to introduce a new way for the 

education system to work together to support schools in their improvement, build 
confidence in the system and retain a clear focus on supporting all learners to progress 
through their education.   

 
2.2 In July 2022, Welsh Government published the report Scoping study for the evaluation of the 

curriculum and assessment reforms in Wales, setting out recommendations regarding how 
we will know that our new curriculum improves learning in Wales. 

 
2.3 On 19 January 2023, the Minister for Education and Welsh Language released a written 

statement:  'School improvement and the information landscape' outlining the next steps in 
terms of developing a new data and information ecosystem/landscape.  Written Statement: 
School improvement and the information landscape (19 January 2023). 

 
2.4  Also on 19 January 2023, a report was published, Developing a new data and information 

ecosystem that supports the reformed school system in Wales' Research exploring a new 
information system for schools. The report notes recommendations for methods of using 
data and information in ways that will enable partners across the system to work together to 
help learners achieve their potential, regardless of their background. 

 
2.5  In a Statement by HMCI Owen Evans regarding the publication of 'Developing a new 

information ecosystem' by Welsh Government, plans to develop a wider range of 
information to support improved arrangements for evaluation and improvement were 
welcomed. Statement from HMCI Owen Evans re: today’s publication of Welsh 
Government’s ‘Developing a new data and information ecosystem’ | Estyn 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8

https://www.gov.wales/scoping-study-evaluation-curriculum-and-assessment-reforms-wales
https://www.gov.wales/scoping-study-evaluation-curriculum-and-assessment-reforms-wales
https://www.gov.wales/written-statement-school-improvement-and-information-landscape
https://www.gov.wales/written-statement-school-improvement-and-information-landscape
https://www.gov.wales/research-exploring-new-information-system-schools
https://www.gov.wales/research-exploring-new-information-system-schools
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/news/statement-hmci-owen-evans-re-todays-publication-welsh-governments-developing-new-data-and?_ga=2.85592927.752119503.1675245081-1861468032.1675245081
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/news/statement-hmci-owen-evans-re-todays-publication-welsh-governments-developing-new-data-and?_ga=2.85592927.752119503.1675245081-1861468032.1675245081


GwE: Joint Committee - 15/02/2022 

 

 

2 

 
3.0  Considerations  
3.1  The report outlines the different information needs within the system and proposes 

developing a broader suite of information on areas such as wellbeing (both learner and staff) 
and the development of learners’ skills integral to the four purposes. 

 
3.2  Building on the findings of today’s report, Welsh Government will now work with 

practitioners across Wales to develop a shared set of information which can help to support 
learning by understanding learner progress, attainment and the components which drive 
them. This will be informed by the eight factors which support curriculum realisation set out 
in the school improvement guidance. There will be a particular focus on improving 
understanding of progress of disadvantaged learners.  The Minister for Education is keen to 
gain the views of parents in this work, to understand what information they will find useful.  

 
3.3  Welsh Government will work with local authorities, regional consortia and partnerships 

alongside this to seek to build a coherent and consistent approach across Wales which 
supports learning and minimises workload for teachers and schools.  Welsh Government will 
be writing to schools in the coming weeks to provide further details, and providing further 
updates as this work progresses.  

 
4.0  Recommendations   
4.1  The Joint Committee is asked to note the content of the report.      
 
5.0 Financial Implications 
5.1  There are no financial implications arising from this report.     
 
6.0  Equalities Impact   
6.1.1 There are no new equalities implications arising from this report.   
 
7.0  Personnel Implications  
7.1.1 There are no new personnel implications arising from this report.   
 
8.0  Consultation undertaken  
8.1  Consultation with GwE Management Board.  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
OPINION OF STATUTORY OFFICERS  
 
Monitoring Officer:  
Nothing to add from a propriety perspective. 

 
Statutory Finance Officer: 
Nothing to add to the report from the perspective of financial propriety. 
 

Page 60



GwE Joint committee 15/02/2023 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE  

15 FEBRUARY 2023  

 

Report by:  Arwyn Thomas - GwE Managing Director  

Subject:   Ein Llais Ni  

 

1.0 Purpose of Report  

1.1 To share information with members of the Joint Committee on the success of the Ein Llais Ni 
project and the plans for further expansion of the work.   

 

2.0  Background  

2.1 The purpose of Ein Llais Ni is to highlight the importance of oracy in the school curriculum in 
the context of the Welsh language (across the entire age range) and to suggest ideas for 
strategies that schools/teachers can develop in order to encourage and promote the 
speaking and listening skills of learners. 
 

2.2 The work has been developed in collaboration with schools across the north Wales region 
and Bangor University, with Professor Enlli Thomas (Deputy Assistant Vice Chancellor – 
Welsh Language) who is an international expert on promoting oracy skills and bilingual 
teaching strategies, leading the practical research. 

 
2.3 The aim of the project is:   

 To develop pedagogy and suggest ideas for strategies that schools/teachers can 
develop to encourage and promote the speaking and listening skills of learners, 
including the use of digital technology for enrichment. 

 To provide a Professional Learning Resource which provides guidance on planning 
and a reference to resources for teachers so that they can try out various strategies 
according to the needs of their learners. 

 To provide guidance to oracy leaders on the practical steps that could be taken 
strategically, as well as supporting resources to realise them. 

 To provide access to effective research and practice.  
 

 
 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



GwE Joint committee 15/02/2023 

 

2 

3.0     Matters for consideration 

3.1 Part 1 success – outlined below are the key developments for part 1 of the project, from 
September 2021 to November 2022: 
 
• 80+ teachers submitted case studies highlighting the impact on teaching and learning 

covering a range of themes.   
• Bangor University conducted interviews with the teachers involved in the more 

intensive research to evaluate the effectiveness of what was delivered to schools 
throughout the year.  

• A Professional Learning Resource was designed in the form of a website 
www.einllaisni.cymru (currently in Welsh only) in order to collate the resources.  This 
resource will be a provision that will be available nationally and to all schools. 

• A research report was completed by Bangor University to evaluate the effectiveness of 
the project, with a view to identifying specific challenges faced within schools in terms 
of how best to get children to use their Welsh and the Skills associated with its use.  

• A Bangor University student has worked closely with Professor Enlli Môn Thomas and 
researched the field.  This has led to the production of a booklet for practitioners which 
is a quick reference for teachers on developing children and young people’s oracy skills 
– ‘O Enau Plant’. Initial feedback on the resource is very positive.  

• An event entitled: ‘Ein Llais Ni: Datblygu Siaradwyr y Dyfodol’ was held on 22 November 
2022. A valuable contribution was made by the schools that had been involved in the 
work, representation from Welsh Government, Ein Llais Ni Management Board, Bangor 
University – lecturers and students, Local Authority Officers, teachers from the schools 
currently involved in the project and others with an interest.  Positive feedback was 
received after the day. 

• It is intended to extend the work further by continuing to develop the website, 
promoting the work with the SIA and raising awareness of the content of the 
Professional Learning resource nationally. 

 
3.2 The Project Team has highlighted the next steps following an evaluation of the work in part 

1, and has been successful following the submission of an application for funding from the 
Welsh Government to further develop and expand the work, namely part 2 of the project.   

3.3 The purpose of the additional resource is to intensify the work with the existing schools and 
expand to more Welsh medium and bilingual schools as well as to develop equivalent 
provision for English medium schools, to collaborate on provision for schools nationally as 
well as to strengthen the link with the University and ITE students. 

3.4 The main objectives will be:   

 to nurture the self-confidence and wellbeing of learners, and develop them as 
confident bilingual communicators 

 to experiment with strategies (including the use of digital tools) to promote oracy 
skills in Welsh 

 to develop teachers as active researchers – reflecting on contemporary research, 
modelling strategies in practice and evaluating success by submission of case studies 

 to support teachers to plan more purposefully in order to support and develop 
learners’ speaking and listening skills in Welsh in the context of the Curriculum for 
Wales 

 to offer authentic experiences for learners to use their Welsh in various situations in 
their daily lives by collaborating with partners (agencies/organisations/individuals). 

 

Page 62

http://www.einllaisni.cymru/


GwE Joint committee 15/02/2023 

 

3 

3.5 With regard to the planning and implementation of part 2 of the project (January 2023 – 

June 2024), it is intended to do the following:   

• Appoint a project officer to promote the project and website, as well as to develop 
teaching materials, co-ordinate and run training for teachers, on-line and face to face. 
He/she will liaise with schools, be a member of Ein Llais Ni project team and work 
closely with the research team from Bangor University. It will be a core role within the 
project team to ensure that we meet all targets on time and to a high standard. He/she 
will use their teaching expertise to support teachers on the practical steps to develop 
oracy through the implementation of Ein Llais Ni. 

• Appoint a part-time University research officer to evaluate the work and support 
schools to self-evaluate their research. 

• Develop the design and content of the Professional Learning website as a national 
resource.   

 
3.6        For the next period also, we will develop the following projects:  

 
Project 1: Extend the support to develop speaking and listening skills in Welsh Medium and 
two language Schools by intensifying the work with the existing schools and expanding into 
other Welsh medium schools regionally and nationally. 

o Develop a Professional Learning resource and content for schools – plan and 
develop further resources to enrich the content of the website and provide 
guidance in the form of digital and face-to-face sessions for teachers 
implementing Ein Llais Ni. 

Project 2: Support to develop speaking and listening skills in English Medium Schools. 
o Pilot Ein Llais Ni in a cross-section of English medium schools (primary and 

secondary). 
o Adapt the Professional Learning resource produced in part 1 to complement the 

pedagogy of introducing the Welsh language in English medium settings. 
o Work with partnerships (authorities and regions) to develop the work. 
o Work with Bangor University’s research team to evaluate the work and make 

recommendations. 
o Introduce an equivalent Professional Learning resource to that developed in part 

1 in order to support the development of oracy in English medium settings. 
 

• Project 3: Develop the pedagogy of prospective teachers by strengthening the link with 
SIA: Partnership with the University/GwE. Implement the Professional Learning 
package.   

 
4.0         Recommendations 

4.1  The Joint Committee is asked to approve the content of the report and the plans to develop 
the project in accordance with the targets set by the Welsh Government.   

 

5.0  Financial implications  

5.1 An additional allocation of up to £272,000 was received from the Welsh Government 
following the submission of a bid for funding to further develop and expand the work.   

 
5.2  The funding will be used specifically to develop ‘Project 1: extend the support to develop 

speaking and listening skills in Welsh medium and two language schools’ and ‘Project 2: 
support to develop speaking and listening skills in English medium schools’.   

Page 63



GwE Joint committee 15/02/2023 

 

4 

 

6.0  Equality impacts  

6.1  There are no new equality implications arising from this report 

 

7.0 Personnel Implications  

7.1  There are no new personnel implications arising from this report 

 

8.0  Consultation undertaken  

8.1  Consultation with GwE Management Board.   

 

STATUTORY OFFICERS’ VIEWS  
 
Monitoring Officer:  
Nothing to add from a propriety perspective. 

 
Statutory Finance Officer:  
I confirm that we have received an offer letter of £272,000 as noted in part 5 of the report, and we 
will work with GwE to ensure it operates within the allocation. 
 
 
 

Page 64



GwE:  Joint Committee 15/02/2023 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

REPORT TO THE JOINT COMMITTEE  

15 FEBRUARY 2023 

Report by: Arwyn Thomas - GwE Managing Director  

Subject: Calendar of Meetings for 2023-24 

 

 

1.0  Purpose of the Report  

1.1. Ask the Joint Committee to agree on a calendar of meetings for the coming year.  

 

2.0  Background  

2.1  The Joint Committee will meet as necessary to meet the needs of the Service in line with the 

timescale, on condition that a minimum of three meetings are held per year, with one of them 

being the annual general meeting. The location of the meetings will be agreed by the Joint 

Committee. 

2.2.  In Appendix 1, a (draft) timetable of meetings is proposed for adoption. 

 

3.0 Considerations  

3.1   It is proposed that the meetings be held virtually / GwE Offices in Bryn Eirias, Colwyn Bay. 

 

4.0  Recommendations  

4.1  The Joint Committee is asked to: 

4.1.1.    Approve the calendar of meetings as set out in Appendix 1.  

4.1.2   Authorise the Chair to make amendments to the calendar, if required.  

 

5.0  Financial implications 

 5.1  There are no financial implications arising from this report.   

 

 

 

 

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



GwE:  Joint Committee 15/02/2023 

 

 

 6.0  Equalities Impact   

 6.1  There are no new equalities implications arising from this report.  

 

 7.0  Personnel Implications  

 7.1  There are no new personnel implications arising from this report.  

 

 8.0  Consultation undertaken  

 8.1  Consultation took place with the six North Wales Local Authorities in order to avoid any clash 

with Council meetings. 

 

 9.0  Appendices  

Appendix 1: Proposed meetings of GwE Joint Committee 2023/2024.   

 

 

OPINION OF STATUTORY OFFICERS  

 

Monitoring Officer:  

Nothing to add from a propriety perspective. 

 

Statutory Finance Officer: 

I support the recommendations, as the proposed dates of GwE Joint Committee meetings, as 

proposed here, are fit for the purpose of financial procedures. 

 
 

Page 66



GwE: Joint Committee 15/02/2023 

Appendix 1: Revision of proposed meetings of GwE Joint Committee 2023/2024. 

 
  

MEETING DATE TIME LOCATION - to be confirmed 

GwE JOINT COMMITTEE 24/05/2023 10.30a.m. Zoom/GwE Offices, Bryn Eirias, Colwyn Bay  

GwE JOINT COMMITTEE 12/07/2023 10.30a.m. Zoom/GwE Offices, Bryn Eirias, Colwyn Bay  

 GwE JOINT COMMITTEE 04/10/2023 10.30a.m. Zoom/GwE Offices, Bryn Eirias, Colwyn Bay  

 GwE JOINT COMMITTEE 06/12/2023 10.30a.m. Zoom/GwE Offices, Bryn Eirias, Colwyn Bay  

 GwE JOINT COMMITTEE 28/02/2024 10.30a.m. Zoom/GwE Offices, Bryn Eirias, Colwyn Bay  

 GwE JOINT COMMITTEE 22/05/2024 10.30a.m. Zoom/GwE Offices, Bryn Eirias, Colwyn Bay  

 GwE JOINT COMMITTEE 10/07/2024 10.30a.m. Zoom/GwE Offices, Bryn Eirias, Colwyn Bay  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 BUDGET 2022-2023: QUARTER 3 MONITORING
	Appendix 1 - Budget review 2022-23: 3rd Quarter

	6 GwE BUDGET 2023-2024 (BASE BUDGET)
	Appendix 1 - GwE Base Budget 2023/24
	Appendix 2 - Authorities Financial Contributions

	7 BUSINESS PLAN 2022-2023: QUARTER 3 MONITORING
	GwE Business Plan 2022/23 Quarter 2 Progress Report
	GwE Business Plan 2022/23 Regional and LA Data Quarter 3

	8 WRITTEN STATEMENT: SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT AND THE INFORMATION LANDSCAPE - MINISTER FOR EDUCATION AND WELSH LANGUAGE
	9 EIN LLAIS NI PROJECT
	10 CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2023-2024

